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General Notice No. 1337 of 2018

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT
The undermentioned Reprint and Government 

Notices are published in the Legal Supplement to 
this number of the Government Gazette:

Reprint of the Financial Reporting 
(International Standard on Auditing 701) Rules 
2017, published as Government Notice No. 253 
of 2018, by the direction of the Prime Minister 
for the purpose set out in section 3(a) of 
the Reprint of Laws Act

(Reprint No. 2 of 2018)

The Banking (Compoundable Offences) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 106 of 2018)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 26) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 107 of 2018)

Prime Minister’s Office,
Port Louis. 

This 22th September, 2018.

General Notice No. 1338 of 2018

APPOINTMENT OF PUISNE JUDGE

The Acting President of the Republic of 
Mauritius, has, in accordance with the powers vested 
in him under section 77(3) of the Constitution, 
and acting in accordance with the advice of the 
Judicial and Legal Service Commission, appointed 
Honourable Mr Patrick Michel Tat Kong Kam 
Sing, Judge in Bankruptcy and Master & Registrar, 
as Puisne Judge, with effect from 10 September 
2018.

Date: 10 September 2018

The State House 
Le Reduit

First Publication

General Notice No. 1339 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 

Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Beau Bassin in the district of Plaine 
Wilhems for the public purpose of implementing 
the Metro Express Project.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1 [PIN 1714660220] of an extent of 
nine and twenty three hundredths square metres 
(9.23m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of two hundred and eight nine square 
metres (289m2) belonging to Mr. and Mrs. Fareed 
Maudarbux as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in volume TV 2624/14.

The plot of land of the extent of 9.23m2 has 
been attributed PIN - 1714660220 as per PIN 
Certificate referenced PCR 14903/2018 by the 
Ministry of Housing and Lands and is bounded as 
follows:

Towards the North by land belonging to Mr. 
& Mrs. Fareed Maudarbux as per TV. 2624/14 on 
eight metres and seventy one centimetres (8.71m).

Towards the South by former Railway Line on 
eight metres and eight centimetres (8.08m).

Towards the West by land belonging to 
Mr. Haroon Nujjoo as per TV. 1474/19 on two 
metres and thirty one centimetres (2.31m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000482, 
drawn up by Mr. SUNGKUR Vishal, Government 
Land Surveyor on 10.09.2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Section on the second floor, at the 
Ministry of Housing and Lands, Plot 52, Ebene 
Tower, Ebene Cybercity during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette, a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and of the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 11/09/2018

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene
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First Publication

General Notice No. 1340 of 2018

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Beau-Bassin 
(Chapman) as per title deed but in fact situate at 
Coromandel (Belle Etoile), in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems for the public purpose of the construction 
of Al-Ml Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 6 (Serial No. 50) [PIN 1714130110] 
of an extent of four hundred and twenty eight and 
seventy eight hundredths square metres (428.78m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
fifty square perches (0A50P) or two thousand 
one hundred and ten and forty four hundredths 
square metres (2110.44m2) belonging to Heirs 
Ramsoondur MODUN (Late Mr Ramsoondur 
MODUN bom on 24/04/1923 holder of a birth 
certificate bearing number 462/1923) as evidenced 
by title deeds transcribed in Volumes TV 553/528 
and TV 1624/210 and is bounded as follows:-

• Towards the North by State Land [TV 
201804/001974] on eleven metres and 
ninety six centimetres (11.96m).

• Towards the East by Port Louis-Saint Jean 
Road (Al) on forty nine metres and fifty 
centimetres (49.50m).

• Towards the South by State Land [TV 
201804/001642] on six metres and fifty 
three centimetres (6.53m).

• Towards the West by the surplus of land 
on three lines measuring forty metres and 
eighty centimetres (40.80m), two metres 
and seventy one centimetres (2.71m) and 
six metres and seventy three centimetres 
(6.73m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000465, drawn 
up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, Land 
Surveyor on the 16/07/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Observation is hereby made that this present 
notice under Section 8 of the Land Acquisition 
Act cancels and replaces the description of the 
Portion No. 6 (Serial No. 50) in the previous notice 
under Section 8 of the Land Acquisition Act dated 
14/02/2018 and published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of24/02/2018 and 10/03/2018 
under General Notices No. 228 of 2018 and 337 
Of 2018.

Date 04/09/2018.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1341 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 7)

Notice is hereby given that the State of 
Mauritius has decided to abandon the acquisition 
of a land being Portion No.22 (Serial No.22) 
referred to in General Notices No.843 and 926 
of 2017 and General Notices No.127 and 195 of 
2018 published in the Government Gazette in its 
issues of 17/06/2017, 01/07/2017, 10/02/2018 and 
24/02/2018 respectively, whereby the Minister of 
Housing and Lands gave Notice under Section 6 
and Section 8 of the Land Acquisition Act of his 
decision to acquire compulsorily a portion of land 
belonging to CITY VIEW DEVELOPMENT 
COMPANY LTD holder of a business registration 
number Cl 1099986 situate at Phoenix in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems for the public purpose 
of the construction of Grade Separated Junctions 
at Pont Fer/Jumbo/Dowlut Roundabouts.

Date: 04/09/2018

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene



3596 The Mauritius Government Gazette

First Publication

General Notice No. 1342 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 7)

Notice is hereby given that the State of 
Mauritius has decided to abandon the acquisition 
of a land being Portion No.24 (Serial No.24) 
referred to in General Notices No.843 and 926 
of 2017 and General Notices No.129 and 197 of 
2018 published in the Government Gazette in its 
issues of 17/06/2017, 01/07/2017, 10/02/2018 and 
24/02/2018 respectively, whereby the Minister of 
Housing and Lands gave Notice under Section 6 
and Section 8 of the Land Acquisition Act of his 
decision to acquire compulsorily a portion of land 
belonging to CITY VIEW DEVELOPMENT 
COMPANY LTD holder of a business registration 
number Cl 1099986 situate at Phoenix in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems for the public purpose 
of the construction of Grade Separated Junctions 
at Pont Fer/Jumbo/Dowlut Roundabouts.

Date 04/09/2018

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1343 of 2018

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.l9fSen7//7Vo. 19) [PIN: 1317060394] 
of an extent of one thousand nine hundred and 
twelve and ninety seven hundredths square metres 
(1912.97m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of nineteen thousand five hundred and 
fifty seven square metres (19557m2) belonging to 

SYNDICATDES COPROPR1ETAIRES DE MONT 
OLYMPE as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 201712/001562 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by Portion No. 20 
(Serial No. 20) of the plan mentioned below on 
eighteen metres and eighty centimetres (18.80m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 18 (Serial 
No. 18) [land being acquired from SOCIETE DE 
PREVOYANCK] on one hundred and eighty eight 
metres and twenty six centimetres (188.26m).

Towards the South West by a common road of 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) on 
one metres and fifty centimetres (1.50m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on five lines measuring thirty metres and sixty six 
centimetres (30.66m), thirteen metres and fifty 
eight centimetres (13.58m), twenty metres and 
sixty two centimetres (20.62m), ninety nine metres 
and forty two centimetres (99.42m) and twenty 
four metres and ninety centimetres (24.90m) 
respectively.

Observation is hereby made that Portion 
No. 19 (Serial No. 19) forms part of a larger plot 
of land of an extent of two thousand square metres 
(2000m2) which has been the object of a building 
site lease in favour of Mr STEPHANE ROBERT, 
bom on 19/04/1971 holder of French passport 
numberl7EE63102 expiring on 04/10/2027 and 
civilly married to Mrs Kathlyn Michelle MACKAY 
on 02/06/2014 under the system of legal community 
of goods and properly, as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TB 201802/000056.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000464, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 10/07/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.
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Date: 03/09/2018.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1344 of 2018

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 20 (Serial No. 20) 
[PIN: 1317010235] of an extent of one thousand 
nine hundred and eighty three and thirty five 
hundredths square metres (1983.35m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of one arpent 
and fifty three square perches (1A53P) or six 
thousand four hundred and fifty seven and ninety 
three hundredths square metres (6457.93m2) 
belonging to (i) Mr Hurrypersad RAMDHANY 
bom on 27/06/1925 for the usufruct and (ii) Mr 
Ramprakashsing RAMDANY bom on 30/01/1966 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
R300166080102A for the bare ownership as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
1761/77. The said Mr Hurrypersad RAMDHANY 
has passed away on 17/01/1997 as evidenced by 
death certificate No. 9 registered on 18/01/1997. 
Portion No. 20 (Serial No. 20) [PIN: 1317010235] 
is bounded as follows:

Towards the North East by a common road of 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide 
on thirty metres and sixty centimetres (30.60m).

Towards the South East by a common road of 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide 
on two lines measuring thirty one metres and 
seventy two centimetres (31.72m) and thirty seven 
metres and ninety nine centimetres (37.99m) 
respectively.

Towards the South West partly by Portion 
No. 19 (Serial No. 19) of the plan mentioned below 
and partly by land belonging to SYNDICAT DES 
COPROPRIETAIRES DE MONT OLYMPE on 
twenty two metres and eighty five centimetres 
(22.85m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring thirty nine metres and 
seventy three centimetres (39.73m) and thirty 
six metres and seventy five centimetres (36.75m) 
respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000464, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 10/07/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 03/09/2018.

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1345 of 2018

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily ninety 
two (92) portions of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belle Vue Pilot and Fond Du Sac in the 
district of Pamplemousses for the public purpose 
of the Construction of drains in the context of 
Flood Mitigation Measures at Fond Du Sac.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1, of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and sixty one square metres (161m2) is to 
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be excised from a portion of land of the extent of 
four thousand two hundred and twenty and eighty 
seven hundredths square metres (4220.87m2) 
belonging to Mr. Nundlall BHAGOOLI as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 6119/14, is bounded as follows

Towards the North East by the property 
belonging to Mr. Heeralall BHAGOOLI (portion 
No. 3 described below).

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Nundlall BHAGOOLI.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Nundlall BHAGOOLI.

Portion No. 2 of an approximate extent of two 
hundred and fifty five square metres (255m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of the extent of 
one arpent and fifty nine perches (1A59P) [or six 
thousand seven hundred and eleven and eighteen 
hundredths square metres (6,711.18m2)] belonging 
to Mr. Deonanan SOOKENRAM as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1199/83 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Deonanan SOOKENRAM.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Deonanan SOOKENRAM.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Portion No. 3 of an approximate extent of seven 
hundred and forty three square metres (743m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of the extent of 
four thousand two hundred and twenty and eighty 
seven hundredths square metres (4220.87m2) 
belonging to Mr. Heeralall BHAGOOLI as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 
6119/15 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by the axis of a common and 
party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South by portion No.l described 
above.

Towards the West by the surplus of Land 
belonging to the Mr. Heeralall BHAGOOLI.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Portion No. 4 of an approximate extent of eight 
hundred and seventy two square metres (872m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of fifty five 
and half perches (0A55‘/2P) [or two thousand three 
hundred and forty two and fifty eight hundredths 
square metres (2,342.58m2)] belonging to Heirs 
Poojunsing KALLEE as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 524/436 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 5 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Poojunsing KALLEE.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Portion No. 5 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and forty one square metres (241m2) 
occupied by Mr. Govinden RUNGASAMY and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 7 
described below.

Towards the South East by the land occupied to 
Mr. Govinden RUNGASAMY.

Towards the South West by portion No. 4 
described above.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Portion No. 6 of an approximate extent of four 
hundred and seventy five square metres (475m2) 
occupied by Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami 
SEENEEVASSEN and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South East by the land occupied 
Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami SEENEEVASSEN.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.
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Towards the North West partly by land 
belonging to Heirs Poojunsing KALLEE, partly by 
land occupied by Mr. Govinden RUNG AS AMY 
and partly by land occupied by Mr. Ramalingum 
LINGIAH.

Portion No. 7 of an approximate extent of 
three hundred square metres (300m2) occupied by 
Mr. Ramalingum LINGIAH and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South East by portion No. 6 
described above.

Towards the South West by portion No. 5 
described above.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.90m wide.

Portion No. 8 of an approximate extent of 
ninety one square metres (91m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of eight thousand nine 
hundred and six and four hundredths square metres 
(8,906.04m2) belonging to Heirs Poojunsing 
KALLEE as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V. 524/436 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 9 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Poojunsing KALLEE.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Poojunsing KALLEE.

Portion No. 9 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and eighty seven square metres (187m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of forty two and 
three quarter perches (0A42 %P) [or one thousand 
eight hundred and four and forty two hundredths 
square metres (1,804.42m2)] belonging to Heirs 
Moonsamy CUNJAMALAY as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1306/81 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 10 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 8 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Moonsamy CUNJAMALAY.

Portion No. 9a of an approximate extent of 
ninety four square metres (94m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of forty two and three 
quarter perches (0A423/4P) [or one thousand 
eight hundred and four and forty two hundredths 
square metres (1,804.42m2)] belonging to Heirs 
Moonsamy CUNJAMALAY as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1306/81 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 10a 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Moonsamy CUNJAMALAY.

Towards the South West by the land belonging 
to Heirs Poojunsing KALLEE.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.

Portion No. 10 of an approximate extent of fifty 
seven square metres (57m2) occupied by Heirs 
Rajamanee ARUMUGAM and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 11 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 9 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Heirs Rajamanee ARUMUGAM.

Portion No. 10a of an approximate extent of 
thirty five square metres (35m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land occupied by Heirs Rajamanee 
ARUMUGAM and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 11a 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
occupied by Heirs Rajamanee ARUMUGAM.

Towards the South West by portion No. 9a 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.
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Portion No. 11 of an approximate extent of 
seventy seven square metres (77m2) occupied by 
Mr. Augamootoo KISTNEN and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 12 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 10 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Augamootoo KISTNEN.

Portion No. Ila of an approximate extent 
of forty square metres (40m2) occupied by 
Mr. Augamootoo KISTNEN and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 12a 
described below.

Towards the South East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Augamootoo KISTNEN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 10 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.

Portion No. 12 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and twelve square metres (112m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of twenty five perches 
(0A25P) [or one thousand and fifty five and twenty 
two hundredths square metres (1,055.22m2)] 
belonging to Mrs. Deviani RUNGASAMY as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T. V. 
2009/98 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 13 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 11 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Deviani RUNGASAMY.

Portion No. 12a of an approximate extent of 
fifty six square metres (56m2) is to be excised from 
a portion of land of twenty five perches (0A25P) 
[or one thousand and fifty five and twenty two 

hundredths square metres (1,055.22m2)] belonging 
to Mrs. Deviani RUNGASAMY as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 2009/98 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 13a 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Deviani RUNGASAMY.

Towards the South West by portion No. 11a 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.

Portion No. 13 of an approximate extent of 
seventy seven square metres (77m2) occupied by 
Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami SEENEEVASSEN 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami SEENEEVASSEN.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 12 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied by 
Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami SEENEEVASSEN.

Portion No. 13a of an approximate extent 
of one hundred and ten square metres (110m2) 
occupied by Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami 
SEENEEVASSEN and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.90m wide.

Towards the South East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Mardaymootoo Munisami SEENEEVASSEN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 12a 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.

Portion No. 14 of an approximate extent of 
five hundred and seven square metres (507m2) 
being a portion of land of twelve perches (0A12P) 
[or five hundred and six and five tenths square 
metres (506.5m2)] belonging to Miss Sundheea 
MOORUTH as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume T.V 3204/43 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.
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Towards the South East by portion No. 15 
described below.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 15 of an approximate extent of 
ninety seven square metres (97m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of twelve perches (0A12P) [or 
five hundred and six and five tenths square metres 
(506.5m2)] belonging to Messrs Shailesh Kumar 
PANCHOORY and Uttam Kumar PANCHOORY 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V 1527/136 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of 
land belonging to Messrs Shailesh Kumar 
PANCHOORY and Uttam Kumar PANCHOORY.

Towards the South East by portion No. 16 
described below.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 14 
described above.

Portion No. 16 of an approximate extent of 
twenty seven square metres (27m2) occupied by 
Mr. Caveree Moree and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Caveree Moree.

Towards the South East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Caveree Moree.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 15 
described above.

Portion No. 17 of an approximate extent of fifty 
nine square metres (59m2) is to be excised from 
a portion of land of twelve perches (0A12P) [or 
five hundred and six and five tenths square metres 
(506.5m2)] belonging to Messrs Shailesh Kumar 
PANCHOORY and Uttam Kumar PANCHOORY 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 1527/136 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of 
land belonging to Messrs Shailesh Kumar 
PANCHOORY and Uttam Kumar PANCHOORY.

Towards the South West by the surplus of 
land belonging to Messrs Shailesh Kumar 
PANCHOORY and Uttam Kumar PANCHOORY.

Towards the North West by portion No. 14 
described above.

Portion No. 18 of an approximate extent 
of two hundred and thirty four square metres 
(234m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
twelve thousand six hundred and sixty two and 
sixty one hundredths (12,662.61m2) belonging to 
Mr. Ramrai SEECHURN as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1532/102 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramraj SEECHURN.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramraj SEECHURN.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 19 
described below.

Portion No. 19 of an approximate extent of nine 
hundred and ninety five square metres (995m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land being forty five 
perches (0A45P) [or one thousand eight hundred 
and ninety nine and thirty nine square metres 
(1,899.39m2)] belonging to Mr. Henri SAUZIER 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 1532/102 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by portion No. 18 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 20 of an approximate extent of 
one hundred and forty square metres (140m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of twelve 
thousand six hundred and sixty two and sixty one 
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hundredths square metres (12,662.61 m2) belonging 
to Mr. Ramrai SEECHURN as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1532/102 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramraj SEECHURN.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramraj SEECHURN.

Towards the North West by portion No. 19 
described above.

Portion No. 21 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand seven hundred and ten square metres 
(1,710m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of three arpents and fifty three perches (3A53P) 
[or fourteen thousand eight hundred and ninety 
nine and sixty seven hundredths square metres 
(14,899.67m2)] belonging to Mrs. Saniogeeta 
PURGAS (bom RAMKISSOON) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1532/102 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Saniogeeta PURGAS (bom 
RAMKISSOON).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 22 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand and sixty square metres (1,060m2) 
occupied by Mrs. Vijaya Luxmee GOKHOOL and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the land occupied 
Mrs. Vijaya Luxmee GOKHOOL.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 23 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand four hundred and sixty seven square 
metres (1,467m2) is to be excised from a portion of 
land of fifty three thousand four hundred and sixty 
six square metres (53,466m2) belonging to Mr. 
Cabeeraze RAMKISSOON as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 201702/002006 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Cabeeraze RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 24 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand eight hundred and fourteen square 
metres (1,814m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of fifty thousand four hundred and thirty 
nine square metres (50,439m2) belonging to Mr. 
Jairaj RAMKISSOON as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V201702/002006 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Jairaj RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 25 of an approximate extent of one 
thousand seven hundred and twenty square metres 
(1,720m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of four thousand one hundred and fifty seven and 
sixty five hundredths square metres (4,157.65m2) 
belonging to Mr. Roodrashen NEEWOOR as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 1597/162 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Roodrashen NEEWOOR.



22 September 2018 3603

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 26 of an approximate extent of 
three thousand nine hundred and sixteen square 
metres (3,916m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of forty four thousand six hundred and 
thirty three square metres (44,633m2) belonging 
to Mrs. Prateebah koomaree BHOLAH as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 201608/001385 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Prateebah koomaree BHOLAH.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 27 of an approximate extent of 
two thousand six hundred and four square metres 
(2,604m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of two arpents and eighty eight perches (2A88) 
[or twelve thousand one hundred and fifty six 
and ten hundredths square metres (12,156.10m2)] 
belonging to Heirs Leelawtee GUTLEEA (bom 
Kanhye) as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V. 1555/204 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 28 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Leelawtee GUTLEEA (bom 
Kanhye).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Leelawtee GUTLEEA (bom 
Kanhye).

Portion No. 28 of an approximate extent of 
seven hundred and four square metres (704m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of one arpent 
(1A00P) [or four thousand two hundred and 
twenty and eighty seven hundredths square metres 
(4,220.87m2)] belonging to Mr. Ghanrazsingh 

TEELUCK as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume T.V 1538/54 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by portion No. 29 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ghanrazsingh TEELUCK.

Towards the South West by portion No. 27 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ghanrazsingh TEELUCK.

Portion No. 29 of an approximate extent of 
two thousand five hundred and twenty seven 
square metres (2,527m2) is to be excised from 
a portion of land of three arpents and ninety 
seven perches (3A97) [or sixteen thousand seven 
hundred and fifty six and eighty five hundredths 
square metres (16,756.85m2)] belonging to Mr. 
Dyanundsing BAHADOOR as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1481/74 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 30 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Dyanundsing BAHADOOR.

Towards the South West by portion No. 28 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Dyanundsing BAHADOOR.

Portion No. 30 of an approximate extent of 
seven hundred and fifty seven square metres 
(757m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
one arpent and thirteen perches (1A13P) [or four 
thousand seven hundred and sixty nine and fifty 
eight square metres (4,769.58m2)] belonging to 
Mrs. Ww. Soobhawtee JEEBUN as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1148/105 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 31 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Ww. Soobhawtee JEEBUN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 29 
described above.
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Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Ww. Soobhawtee JEEBUN.

Portion No. 31 of an approximate extent of six 
hundred and twenty eight square metres (628m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of one 
arpent (1A00) [or four thousand two hundred 
and twenty and eighty seven hundredths square 
metres (4,220.87m2)] belonging to Mr. Neetraj 
Namdsingh JEEBUN and Others as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 8099/1 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 32 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Neetraj Namdsingh JEEBUN 
and Others.

Towards the South West by portion No. 30 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Neetraj Namdsingh JEEBUN 
and Others.

Portion No. 32 of an approximate extent of 
five hundred and fifteen square metres (515m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of eighty 
one perches (0A81P) [or three thousand four 
hundred and eighteen and nine tenths square 
metres (3418.9m2)] belonging to Heirs Kooseeal 
JEEBUN as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V 1297/199 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 33 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Kooseeal JEEBUN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 31 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Kooseeal JEEBUN.

Portion No. 33 of an approximate extent 
of three hundred and fifty eight square metres 
(358m2) forms part of a portion of land of fifty 
six perches (0A56P) [or two thousand three 
hundred and sixty three and sixty eight hundredths 
square metres (2,363.68m2)] belonging to 
Mr. Seedheeyan RAMNANAN as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1480 No. 47 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 34 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Seedheeyan RAMNANAN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 32 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Seedheeyan RAMNANAN.

Portion No. 34 of an approximate extent 
of three hundred and sixty six square metres 
(366m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of fifty seven perches (0A57P) [or two thousand 
four hundred and five and eighty nine hundredths 
square metres (2,405.89m2)] belonging to Heirs 
Chellamootoo CARPANEN as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1163/191 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 35 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Chellamootoo CARPANEN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 33 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Chellamootoo CARPANEN.

Portion No.35 of an approximate extent of nine 
hundred and two square metres (902m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of two thousand five 
hundred and fifty three and thirty five square metres 
(2,553.35m2) belonging to Mrs. Krishnanand 
ROOPCHAND & Mrs. Kreshan GUPTAR as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 
5232/5 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the Forbach Branch 
Road.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Krishnanand ROOPCHAND & 
Mrs. Kreshan GUPTAR.

Towards the South West by the land belonging 
to Heirs Chellamootoo CARPANEN (portion 
No. 34 described above).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Krishnanand ROOPCHAND & 
Mrs. Kreshan GUPTAR.
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Portion No. 36 of an approximate extent 
of two thousand six hundred and forty three 
square metres (2,643m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land of four arpents (4A00) [or sixteen 
thousand eight hundred and eighty three and forty 
eight hundredths square metres (16,883.48m2)] 
belonging to Mr. Tandraz NAUGAH as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1362/50 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 37 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Tandraz NAUGAH.

Towards the South West by the Forbach Branch 
Road.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Tandraz NAUGAH.

Portion No. 37 of an approximate extent of five 
hundred and seventy nine square metres (579m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of ninety 
eight perches (0A98P) [or four thousand one 
hundred and thirty six and forty five square metres 
(4,136.45m2)] belonging to Mr. Rajesh SOOKUN 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V201706/000627 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by an access road of 
3.05m wide.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Rajesh SOOKUN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 36 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Rajesh SOOKUN.

Portion No. 38 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and eighty seven square metres 
(287m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of eight hundred and ninety three square metres 
(893m2) belonging to Mr. Rana Pratab DUSSOYE 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 201804/001516 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 40 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Rana Pratab DUSSOYE.

Towards the South West by an access road of 
3.05m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 39 
described below.

Portion No. 39 of an approximate extent of two 
hundred and twenty eight square metres (228m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of eight 
hundred and ninety three and fifty hundredths 
square metres (893.50m2) belonging to the Mr. 
Dhruvanand DUSSOYE as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 8940/20 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 40 
described below.

Towards the South East by portion No. 38 
described below.

Towards the South West by an access road of 
3.05m wide.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Dhruvanand DUSSOYE.

Portion No. 40 of an approximate extent of six 
hundred and seven square metres (607m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of one arpent and 
one perche (1A01P) [or four thousand two hundred 
and sixty three and five hundredths square metres 
(4,263.05m2)] belonging to Mr. Vencatasamy 
MOONEEGADOO as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V 1994/54 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East portion No. 41 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belongingto Mr. Vencatasamy MOONEEGADOO.

Towards the South West partly portion 
No. 38 described above and partly by portion No. 
39 described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Vencatasamy MOONEEGADOO.

Portion No. 41 of an approximate extent of 
three hundred and eleven square metres (311m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of two thousand 
two hundred and seventy nine and twenty nine 
hundredths square metres (2,279.29m2) belonging 
to Mr. Ajaye NUNKOO as evidenced by title deed 
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transcribed in Volume T.V. 4601/49 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 42 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ajaye NUNKOO.

Towards the South West by portion No. 40 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ajaye NUNKOO.

Portion No. 42 of an approximate extent of 
three hundred and six square metres (306m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of two thousand 
two hundred and seventy nine and twenty nine 
hundredths square metres (2,279.29m2) belonging 
to Mr. Anand MUTTY as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 4601/49 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 43 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Anand MUTTY.

Towards the South West by portion No. 41 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Anand MUTTY.

Portion No. 43 of an approximate extent of three 
hundred and eleven square metres (31 Im2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of one thousand 
one hundred and seventy square metres (1,170m2) 
belonging to the Mr. Dharmaraj JOOTTUN as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 8068/52 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 44 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Dharmaraj JOOTTUN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 42 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Dharmaraj JOOTTUN.

Portion No. 44 of an approximate extent of 
three hundred and thirteen square metres (313m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of two 

thousand two hundred and seventy nine and twenty 
nine hundredths square metres (2,279.29m2) 
belonging to the Mr. Ramruttun KALAPNAUTH 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 4601/49 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 45 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramruttun KALAPNAUTH.

Towards the South West by portion No. 43 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Ramruttun KALAPNAUTH.

Portion No. 45 of an approximate extent of three 
hundred and thirteen square metres (313m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of two thousand 
two hundred and seventy nine and twenty nine 
hundredths square metres (2,279.29m2) belonging 
to the Mr. Randhir DAUHOO as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 201611/001864 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 46 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Randhir DAUHOO.

Towards the South West by portion No. 44 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Randhir DAUHOO.

Portion No. 46 of an approximate extent of nine 
hundred and thirty four square metres (934m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of two arpents and 
six perches (2A06P) [or eight thousand six hundred 
and ninety four and ninety nine hundredths square 
metres (8,694.99m2)] belonging to Mrs. Dewantee 
RAMDIN (bom SUKAMEE) as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1672/148 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by portion No. 47 described 
below.

Towards the East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Dewantee RAMDIN (bom 
SUKAMEE).

Towards the South by portion No. 45 described 
above.
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Towards the West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Dewantee RAMDIN (bom 
SUKAMEE).

Portion No. 47 of an approximate extent of two 
thousand and three square metres (2,003m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of (1A33P) [or 
five thousand six hundred and thirteen and seventy 
five hundredths square metres (5,613.75m2)] 
belonging to Mr. Narainsamy MOONEEGADOO 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V 1994/54 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 48 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus the land 
belonging to Mr. Narainsamy MOONEEGADOO.

Towards the South West by portion No. 46 
described above.

Towards the North West partly by the surplus 
of land belonging to the surplus the land belonging 
to Mr. Narainsamy MOONEEGADOO and partly 
the axis of a common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 48 of an approximate extent of five 
hundred and seventy square metres (570m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of nine thousand 
three hundred and twenty eight square metres 
(9,328m2) belonging to Heirs Veerasamy SAVAN 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1974/8 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus the land 
belonging to Heirs Veerasamy SAVAN.

Towards the South West by portion No. 47 
described above.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 49 of an approximate extent of 
two thousand nine hundred and three square 
metres (2,903m2) occupied by Mr. Caderbaccus 
SOHAWON and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 51 
described below.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South West by of land belonging to 
Mr. Azam MOSAFEER.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Caderbaccus SOHAWON.

Portion No. 50 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and twenty two square metres (122m2) 
occupied by Mr. Caderbaccus SOHAWON and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by portion No. 51 described 
below.

Towards the South West by portion No. 49 
described below.

Towards the West by the land occupied by Mr. 
Caderbaccus SOHAWON.

Portion No. 51 of an approximate extent of four 
hundred and nine square metres (409m2) occupied 
by Mr. Ahmud Illam SHAM and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 52 
described below.

Towards the South East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Ahmud Illam SHAM.

Towards the South West by portion No. 50 
described below.

Towards the North West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Ahmud Illam SHAM.

Portion No. 52 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and fifty eight square metres (158m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of one arpent 
and nineteen perches (1A19P) [or five thousand 
and twenty two and eighty three hundredths square 
metres (5,022.83m2)] belonging to Mr. Gianduth 
PEEDOLLY as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume T.V. 1593/8 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 53 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Gianduth PEEDOLLY.

Towards the South West by portion No. 51 
described above.

Towards the North West by the land belonging 
to Mr. Gianduth PEEDOLLY.

Portion No. 53 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and eight square metres (108m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of nine hundred and 
forty eight and four tenths square metres (948.4m2) 
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belonging to Mr. Suyuss & Mr. Ajay SAHANI as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T. V. 
7968/21 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by portion No. 54 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Suyuss & Mr. Ajay SAHANI.

Towards the South West by portion No. 52 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Suyuss & Mr. Ajay SAHANI.

Portion No. 54 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and twenty seven square metres (127m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of one thousand 
one hundred and ninety nine and twenty five 
hundredths square metres (1,199.25m2) belonging 
to Mrs. Beejantee RAMPHUL (bom ETWAREE) 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 3673/51 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a Common Road.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Beejantee RAMPHUL (bom 
ETWAREE).

Towards the South West by portion No. 53 
described above.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Beejantee RAMPHUL (bom 
ETWAREE).

Portion No. 55 of an approximate extent of 
one hundred and one square metres (101m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of eight 
hundred and forty five square metres (845m2) 
belonging to Mr. Preetam kumar RAMKISSOON 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V.201607/000869 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Preetam kumar RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 56 
described below.

Portion No. 56 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and fifty eight square metres (258m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of one 
thousand four hundred and eighty four square 

metres (1,484m2) belonging to Mrs. Pratima 
Devi RAMKISSOON as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 201607/000869 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Pratima Devi RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South East by portion No. 55 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 57 
described below.

Portion No. 57 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and eighteen square metres (218m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of one 
thousand four hundred and eighty four square 
metres (1,484m2) belonging to Mrs. Aswantee 
Mala RAMKISSOON as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 201607/000869 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Aswantee Mala RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South East by portion No. 56 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 58 
described below.

Portion No. 58 of an approximate extent of 
eighty seven square metres (87m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of eight hundred and forty 
four square metres (844m2) belonging to Mr. Uttam 
Kumar RAMKISSOON as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V.201607/000869 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Uttam Kumar RAMKISSOON.

Towards the South East by portion No. 57 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by a Common Road.

Portion No. 59 of an approximate extent 
of one hundred and ten square metres (110m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of three 
hundred and thirty seven and sixty six hundredths 
square metres (337.66m2) belonging to Mrs. Artee 
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BODHA as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V. 201710/000293 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Artee BODHA.

Towards the South East by a Common Road.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 60 
described below.

Portion No. 60 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and seventeen square metres (117m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of three hundred 
and thirty six and eighty four hundredths square 
metres (336.84m2) belonging to Mr. Outumdeo 
BODHA as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V. 201710/000293 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Outumdeo BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 59 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 61 
described below.

Portion No. 61 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and three square metres (103m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of two hundred and 
ninety five square metres and fifty one hundredths 
square metres (295.51m2) belonging to Heirs 
Anandprasad BODHA as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V.201710/000293 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Anandprasad BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 60 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 62 
described below.

Portion No. 62 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and two square metres (102m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of two hundred and 
ninety five and seventy four hundredths square 
metres (295.74m2) belonging to Mr. Mahabeer 

BODHA as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume T.V.201710/000293 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Mahabeer BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 61 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 63 
described below.

Portion No. 63 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and twenty six square metres (226m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of two 
hundred and ninety five and sixty five hundredths 
square metres (295.65m2) belonging to Mrs. 
Calowtee Devi BODHA as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V.201710/000293 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Calowtee Devi BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 62 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 64 
described below.

Portion No. 64 of an approximate extent of 
eighty seven square metres (87m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of two hundred and twelve 
and fourteen hundredths square metres (212.14m2) 
belonging to Heirs Balkrishna BODHA as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V.201710/000293 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the land belonging 
to Mrs. Pushpum Armoogum.

Towards the South East by portion No. 63 
described above.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Balkrishna BODHA.

Towards the North West by portion No. 65 
described below.

Portion No. 65 of an approximate extent 
of two hundred and ten square metres (210m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of three 
hundred and sixty nine and sixty seven hundredths 
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square metres (369.67m2) belonging to Minor 
Dhashana GOOHIRAM as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 201710/000293 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Minor Dhashana GOOHIRAM.

Towards the South East by portion No. 64 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 66 
described below.

Portion No. 66 of an approximate extent of 
one hundred and twenty eight square metres 
(128m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
three hundred and sixty eight and seventy eight 
hundredths square metres (368.78m2) belonging to 
Mrs. Dhanwantee BODHA as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 201710/000293 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Dhanwantee BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 65 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 67 
described below.

Portion No. 67 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and seven square metres (107m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of two hundred and 
ninety five and sixty four hundredths square metres 
(295.64m2) belonging to Mrs. Vidwantee BODHA 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V.201710/000293 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Vidwantee BODHA.

Towards the South East by portion No. 66 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 68 
described below.

Portion No. 68 of an approximate extent of 
two hundred and fifty two square metres (252m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land being all 
that remains of one thousand one hundred and 

eighty one and eighty hundredths square metres 
(1,181.80m2) belonging to Mr. & Mrs. Kevin 
Chandra SIBARTIE as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume T.V. 8783/29 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of 
land belonging to Mr. & Mrs. Kevin Chandra 
SIBARTIE.

Towards the South East by portion No. 67 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 69 
described below.

Portion No. 69 of an approximate extent of one 
hundred and twenty five square metres (125m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of three 
hundred and thirty eight square metres (338m2) 
belonging to Mr. Vishamsingh JEERAKUN as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V.201804/000850 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Vishamsingh JEERAKUN.

Towards the South East by portion No. 68 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by portion No. 70 
described below.

Portion No. 70 of an approximate extent 
of three hundred and forty five square metres 
(345m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of nine hundred and twenty eight and sixty 
hundredths square metres (928.60m2) belonging to 
Mr. Vishamsingh JEERAKUN as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V.201607/001256 
and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Vishamsingh JEERAKUN.

Towards the South East by portion No. 69 
described above.

Towards the South West by a Common Road.

Towards the North West by Plaines des Papayes 
Road (Bl I).

Portion No. 71 of an approximate extent of 
ten thousand one hundred and thirty one square 
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metres (10,131m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of eighteen thousand six hundred and 
ninety square metres (18,690m2) belonging to Mr. 
Womah Sankar NEERUNJUN as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 8336/59 and 
is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by portion No. 
74 described below and partly by portion No. 75 
described below.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Womah Sankar NEERUNJUN.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 72 of an approximate extent of two 
hundred and forty five square metres (245m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of one arpent 
and twenty one perches (1A21P) or five thousand 
one hundred and seven and twenty five hundredths 
square metres (5,107.25m2) belonging to Mrs. 
Sumitra RAMPERSAD as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1600/150 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by portion No. 73 
described above.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the West by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mrs. Sumitra RAMPERSAD.

Portion No. 73 of an approximate extent of 
eight hundred and ninety four square metres 
(894m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of one arpent and eight perches (1A08P) or four 
thousand five hundred and fifty eight and fifty four 
hundredths square metres (4,558.54m2) belonging 
to Mr. Nagib ABDOOLA as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1632/2 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 72 
described above.

Towards the North West partly by the surplus 
of land belonging to Mr. Nagib ABDOOLA and 
partly by the axis of a common and party road 
3.66m wide.

Portion No. 74 of an approximate extent 
of six thousand five hundred and twenty nine 
square metres (6,529m2) belonging to Ww. 
Premcoomar JUGMOHUN as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 7841/38 and is 
bounded as follows

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by portion No. 75 
described below.

Towards the South West by portion No. 71 
described above.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 75 of an approximate extent 
of six thousand five hundred and twenty nine 
square metres (6,529m2) belonging to Mrs. 
Seenarainsingh ROOPNAUTH as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 7841/38 and 
is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South West by portion No. 71 
described above.

Towards the North West by portion No. 74 
described below.

Portion No. 76 of an approximate extent of 
eighty five square metres (85m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of four thousand three 
hundred and forty seven and forty nine hundredths 
square metres (4,347.49m2) belonging to Mr. 
Abdool Raheem HOSSENALLY & Others as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V.201609/000067 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Abdool Raheem HOSSENALLY 
& Others.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.
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Towards the North West by portion No. 77 
described below.

Portion No. 77 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand one hundred and seventy six square 
metres (1,176m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of nine thousand four hundred and ninety 
six and ninety five hundredths square metres 
(9,496.95m2) belonging to Mr. Abdool Raheem 
HOSSENALLY & Others as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V.201609/000067 
and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Abdool Raheem HOSSENALLY 
& Others.

Towards the South East by portion No. 76 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 78 
described below.

Portion No. 78 of an approximate extent of one 
thousand two hundred square metres (1,200m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of four 
thousand two hundred and twenty and eighty seven 
hundredths square metres (4,220.87m2) belonging 
to Mr. Pritiviraj RUNGLOLL as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 6032/30 and is 
bounded as follows

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Pritiviraj RUNGLOLL.

Towards the South East by portion No. 77 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 79 
described below.

Portion No. 79 of an approximate extent of six 
thousand nine hundred and twenty eight square 
metres (6,928m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of two arpents and two perches (2A02P) 
or eight thousand five hundred and twenty six and 
sixteen hundredths square metres (8,526.16m2) 
belonging to Mr. Inous Rajak JOOMUN as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 
1841/45 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide and partly by 
the surplus of land belonging to Mr. Inous Rajak 
JOOMUN.

Towards the South East by portion No. 78 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West partly by portion No. 
81 described below and partly by portion No. 80 
described below.

Portion No. 80 of an extent of one thousand six 
hundred and ninety three and eighty one hundredths 
square metres (1,693.81m2) belonging to Mr. 
Sateeramsing RAMDANY as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 201508/000004 
and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by portion No. 79 
described above.

Towards the South West partly by portion No. 
81 described below and partly by portion No. 82 
described below.

Towards the North West partly by portion No. 
83 described below.

Portion No. 81 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand six hundred and ninety three and 
eighty one hundredths square metres (1,693.81m2) 
belonging to Mr. Rishiramsing RAMDANY as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 
201508/000004 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by portion No. 80 
described above.

Towards the South East by portion No. 79 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 82 
described below.

Portion No. 82 of an approximate extent of 
one thousand six hundred and ninety three and 
eighty one hundredths square metres (1,693.81m2) 
belonging to Mr. Rajaramsing RAMDANY as 
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evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 201508/000004 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by portion No. 80 
described above.

Towards the South East by portion No. 81 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by portion No. 83 
described below.

Portion No. 83 of an approximate extent of four 
thousand five hundred and sixteen and thirty three 
hundredths square metres (4,516.33m2) belonging 
to Mr. Azad NUCKCHADY as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 1618/165 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East partly by portion No. 
80 described above and partly by portion No. 82 
described above.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 84 of an approximate extent of 
two thousand five hundred and eleven square 
metres (2,511m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land of two arpents and twenty seven perches 
(2A27P) or nine thousand five hundred and eighty 
one and thirty seven hundredths square metres 
(9,581.37m2) belonging to Mr. Nagib ABDOOLA 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 1618/164 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West partly by the axis 
of a common and party road 3.66m wide and 
partly by surplus of land belonging to Mr. Nagib 
ABDOOLA.

Portion No. 85 of an approximate extent of four 
hundred and ninety nine square metres (499m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of three arpents 
and seventy eight perches (3A78P) or fifteen 
thousand nine hundred and fifty four and eighty 
eight hundredths square metres (15,954.88m2) 
belonging to Mr. Abdool Latiff NUCKCHADY as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V. 
1123/182 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Abdool Latiff NUCKCHADY.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 86 of an approximate extent of 
four hundred and forty six square metres (446m2) 
occupied by Mr. Tiberman Mohunji NARAIN and 
is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the land occupied by 
Mr. Tiberman Mohunji NARAIN.

Towards the South East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide.

Portion No. 87 of an approximate extent of 
seventeen square metres (17m2) occupied by 
Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN and is bounded as 
follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide.

Towards the South East by portion No. 13a 
described above.

Towards the South West by the land occupied 
by Mr. Valaydon ANDREKHAN.

Date: 17/09/2018

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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First Publication

General Notice No. 1346 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF 
EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 12 September 2018 under Section 18(1) of the 
Act for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA 
report shall be opened for public inspection .

(a) The undertaking concerns the proposed 
setting up of a waste oil recycling plant 
over a plot of land of an extent of 4221 m2 
by Advance Oil Ltd

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is 
at Bananes in the district of Grand Port

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 hrs to 

12.00 hrs and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at 
the Resource Centre of the Department 
of Environment, Ground Floor, Ken Lee 
Tower, Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges 
Streets, Port Louis and at the District 
Council of Grand Port.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment, govmu. org

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
11 October 2018 at latest. The envelope 
should be marked “EIA comments”, on 
the top left hand comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment
Ministry of Social Security, National Solidarity, 
and Environment
and Sustainable Development
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets
Port Louis

19 September 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

General Notice No. 1347 of 2018

The Representation of the People Act
[Section 5(3)]

APPOINTMENT OF REGISTRATION OFFICERS

It is notified for general information that the following officers have been appointed Registration Officers 
for the Constituencies shown hereunder: -

No. Constituency Name

1. Grand River North West and Port Louis 
West

2. Port Louis South and Port Louis Central

3. Port Louis Maritime and Port Louis East

4. Port Louis North and Montagne Longue

Registration Officer

NARAIDOO-GOONIAH, Yumi Irina Gita

GOPAUL, Daneesha

SEECHURN, Vijaylall

DULMEER, Sharmila

http://environment
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5. Pamplemousses and Triolet

6. Grand Baie and Poudre D’Or

7. Piton and Riviere du Rempart

8. Quartier Militaire and Moka

9. Flacq and Bon Accueil

10. Montagne Blanche and Grand River South 
East

11. Vieux Grand Port and Rose Belle

12. Mahebourg and Plaine Magnien

13. Riviere des Anguilles and Souillac

14. Savanne and Black River

15. La Caveme and Phoenix

16. Vacoas and Floreal

17. Curepipe and Midlands

18. Belle Rose and Quatre Bornes

19. Stanley and Rose Hill

20. Beau Bassin and Petite Riviere

21. Rodrigues

GOPAUL, Daneesha

FATAGAR, Rosida Beebee

DULMEER, Sharmila

SEEWOO, Neena

NARAIDOO-GOONIAH, Yumi Irina Gita

ADHIN-BHUGALOO, Anjala

RAMWODIN, Prema

KASSINATHDOSS, Neetu

RAMBISSOON, Vishwani Devi Tarabhai

SEECHURN, Vijaylall

RAMBISSOON, Vishwani Devi Tarabhai

SEEWOO, Neena

RAMWODIN, Prema

KASSINATHDOSS, Neetu

FAT AGAR, Rosida Beebee

ADHIN-BHUGALOO, Anjala

RAMWODIN, Prema

General Notice No. 391 of 2018 is hereby repealed.

Dated this 19th September, 2018.

Office of the Electoral Commissioner
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1348 of 2018

POST DECLARED VACANT

The Public Service Commission has, in 
accordance with regulation 43 of the Public Service 
Commission Regulations 1967 as subsequently 
amended, decided to declare vacant with effect 
from 18 April 2018, the post of General Worker 
held by Mr Deep Prakash RAMKIRIT for being 
absent from duty without leave.

Ministry of Agro Industry 
and Food Security 

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1349 of 2018

THE STATISTICS ACT
(Notice given under Section 13)

Notice is hereby given that Statistics Mauritius 
will conduct a Living Conditions Survey from 
October 2018 to September 2019. The survey will 
cover some 3,600 private households in the Island 
of Mauritius and Island of Rodrigues.

The Survey will collect information on:

a. Demographic, educational and economic 
characteristics of household members

b. Health status
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c. Practice of sports and outdoor activities
d. Participation in recreational and cultural 

activities
e. Financial situation of households
f. Subjective well-being
g. Time use, i.e activities performed during a 

specific day (24 hours)

Dated this 07th September, 2018

Director of Statistics
Statistics Mauritius

General Notice No. 1350 of 2018

MAURITIUS CANE INDUSTRY AUTHORITY

Control and Arbitration Department
Reduit 80835

Tel: 454 1028/29 Fax: 464 8817

NOTICE TO CANE PLANTERS

SECOND PROVISIONAL ASSESSMENT OF 
SUGAR AND MOLASSES - CROP 2018

In accordance with Section 39 (4) of the 
Mauritius Cane Industry Authority Act 2011, 
the Control and Arbitration Committee has on 
12 September 2018 made a Second Provisional 
Assessment of Sugar and Molasses for Crop 2018.

The assessment has been sent to factories for 
the information of planters and may be consulted 
at the Head Office of the Control and Arbitration 
Department, Reduit.

The assessment may also be accessed at the 
following website: http://acb.agriculture.govmu.org

18 September 2018

Chief Executive Officer

General Notice No. 1351 of 2018

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 415(2)(c) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Notice is hereby given that the following 
companies have been struck off the Register:-

C3829 BEEKUN INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES
LIMITED

C3851 RAMJUTTUN & COMPANY LIMITED
C3869 STAR MAGAZINE COMPANY LIMITED

C4126 THE RODRIGUESE FISHING AND
CARGO DEVELOPMENT(PTY) CY LTD

C4629 COBICO LTD.
C4815 FOOK HING PLASTIC PRODUCTS CO

LTD
C4964 BELLE MARE INVESTMENT LTEE
C5245 NAFSA CLOTHING LIMITED
C5258 VEEDEX TEXTILES LIMITED
C7071 COMPAGNIE D'EXPORTATION DE

MAQUETTES DE BATEAUX ET DE 
MEUBLES MARINS LTEE

C7377 GRAND BAY TOP TOURS DRIVE LTD.
C7415 TAULLOO & CO LTD
C7566 AMT1SH CO Ll'D
C7701 VEGEFLORALTD
C7839 AQUA BEACH MANAGEMENT LIMITED
C8867 CEUNEAU MARINE COMPANY LIMITED
C8898 BELLE VUE COMMERCIAL CENTRE

AND COMPANY LIMITED
C9198 ARCHERS CO. LTD.
C9576 POSADAS LTD
C10242 NEHA TRADE ENTERPRISES LTD
Cl 1762 MULTIBONHEUR TRAVEL TOUR LTD

Date: 17 September 2018

Director of Insolvency
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1352 of 2018

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 415(2)(c) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Notice is hereby given that the following 
companies have been struck off the Register:-

Cl 2342 MEDIALAND CO LTD
Cl 3937 R.S. AUTO AIR CON TRADING LTD
C14134 VISHNU AQUARIUS GARMENT LTD
C14919 G.K GAJADHUR ENTERPRISE LTD
Cl 5470 F.L.A. INTERNATIONAL (MAURITIUS)

LTD
Cl 5973 LUBRIOIL (MTIUS)LTD
Cl6227 SMICO SERVICES LTD
Cl 6249 SI-PRO LTEE
Cl 7466 PRIME BUSINESS SCHOOL LTD
Cl 7646 SUPREME DECORATION MOULDINGS 

LTD

http://acb.agriculture.govmu.org
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C17768 S. JAMALKHAN TRADING LTD
Cl 8173 DEEPSHEELLTD

C18312 STRATFORD COLLEGE LTD
Cl 8494 SMEFLTD

C18595 PUBLI CONCEPT LTD

Cl 8836 CONCEPT DE COMMUNICATION
POUR L’ENTREPRISE (C.C.E. 
INTERNATIONAL) LTD

C18879 M & B CONSTRUCTION LTD

C18973 TITAN TRADING CO LTD

Cl 9324 MOHIMMLTD

C21274 BARDS FOOD & CATERING LTD

C21616 TAJIMA EMBROIDERY & GARMENTS 
INDUSTRIES LTD

C21854 SAMLO-MONTIDA CO LTD

C21940 SILVER CONSTRUCTION LTD.
C22727 LAKSHMI & BHAWANI CO LTD

Date: 19 September 2018

Director of Insolvency Service 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1353 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
Mr and Mrs. Sudeshindra ADNATH to change 
the names of their minor daughter Vishaylly Devi 
into that of Vidhisha so that in future she shall bear 
the name and surname of Vidhisha ADNATH.

Date: 28.07.2018

S. Gigabhoy Sauhoboa (Mrs)
State Counsel

General Notice No. 1354 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
Mr and Mrs. Nunkoomar KALI to change the 
name of their minor daughter Tenistha into that of

Tanushee so that in future she shall bear the name 
and surname of Tanushee KALI.

Date: 25th July 2018

M. S. BHOYROO
Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 1355 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney-General is pleased to authorise 
A’iiya Binti BUNDHOO to change her 
names A’iiya Binti into those of Aliya Binti so 
that in future she shall bear the names and surname 
of Aliya Binti BUNDHOO.

Date: 25th July 2018

H. V. Adeen 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 1356 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney General is pleased to authorise Vidiana 
YENKUTUSAMY to change his name and 
surname Vidiana YENKUTUSAMY into those 
of Vishwara SYDAMAH so that in future he 
shall bear the name and surname of Vishwara 
SYDAMAH.

Date: 9th August 2018

D. Sewpal (Mrs) 
Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 1357 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney General is pleased to authorise Priyashini 
YENKUTUSAMY to change her surname 
YENKUTUSAMY into that of SYDAMAH so 
that in future she shall bear the name and surname 
of Priyashini SYDAMAH.

Date: 9th August 2018

D. Sewpal (Mrs) 
Senior State Counsel
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General Notice No. 1358 of 2018

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of _ _ _ .. Description of,— Base of Operation -------- -------\ahinln r nnnnc

611 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18939 DHOOCHOO Keoraj
5156ZN97
2490kg GV

Jagessur Lane, Gros
Cailloux General Goods

612 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18940
RUMJAUN Sheik
Mohammad Nazim

NYP
34000Kg GV

Bonne Enfant, 
Plaine Verte, Port 

Louis
General Goods

613 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18941
MANURADDY Mohamad NYP 4000Kg 

GVWazeer
Hatch Street, Port 

Louis
General Goods

614 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18942
DULTHUMMON-

BUSGEETH Smita (bom
BUSGEET)

NYP 
lOOOOKgGV

Forbach Branch 
Road, Poudre D'or 

Hamlet
General Goods

615 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18943 RAMBEERICK Navin
NYP 4000Kg 

GV
Dalsinghar Lane,
Belle Vue Maurel General Goods

616 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18944 JANDOO Bibi Rehmatee 
Dilshaad

NYP
35000kg GV

Royal Road, Pointe 
Aux Sables General Goods

617 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18945 JANDOO Bibi Rehmatee 
Dilshaad

NYP Royal Road, Pointe 
35000kg GV Aux Sables General Goods

618 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18946 Yaskhalid & Co Ltd
NYP Avenue Terrasson, 

35000kg GV Pointe Aux Sables General Goods

619 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18947 Yaskhalid & Co Ltd
NYP Avenue Terrasson, 

35000kg GV Pointe Aux Sables General Goods
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of „ Description ofv " .— Base of Operation -------- ----------

620 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18948 Yaskhalid & Co Ltd NYP Avenue Terrasson, 
35000kg GV Pointe Aux Sables General Goods

621 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18949 SEEHAKOO Goodevsing NYP
18000KgGV La Chaumiere General Goods

622 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18950 NAZEER Krishan NYP
15000KgGV

Morcellement VRS 
Ville Noir, 
Mahebourg

General Goods

623 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18951 Super Construction Co Ltd 7698ZY90
25,000kg GV

Industrail Zone, La 
Tour Koenig

General Goods 
+ Containers

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF BASE OF OPERATION

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF OPERATION

Azad EMAMDHULLY Taxi car
AE 123

From: Sir Winston Churchill St Taxi
111 44218/C Stand, Curepipe.

To: Camp Fouquereaux.

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE (TAXI) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE BASE OF
NUMBER OPERATION

From: (Late) Shiv Poorun LOLLCHAND

112 29524/C To: Heirs Shiv Poorun LOLLCHAND to be Taxi Car
4257ZZ10

St Michel Rd, Grand 
Gauberepresented by WW Tetree LOLLCHAND
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF 
OPERATION

113 25207/C From: (Late) Jean Claude AZIE 
To: Jean Denis Boris AZIE

Taxi Car
4801ZS03

Bk7, Accacies St, 
GRNW

114 34837/C
From: (Late) Mohun Karamchand ANCHARAZ 

To: Heirs Mohun Karamchand ANCHARAZ to be 
represented by WW Sounita ANCHARAZ

Taxi Car
4703ZN01

Mare D’Australia

115 15875/C
From: Heirs Randuth PANCHOO rep by Mrs 

Irwantee PANCHOO
To: Jaymangal PANCHOO

Taxi Car Chateau D’Eau 
3273ZS03 Street, Taxi Stand

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC PETROL SERVICE STATION LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT BASE OF OPERATION

7 518/F Vivo Energy Mauritius Limited From: Trianon Shopping 
Park, St Jean

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his objection/s or other representation/s together with his 
name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary to the 
Board, National Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, Port Louis not later than on the 
seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any objection that reaches the 
Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
18 September 2018
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General Notice No. 1359 of 2018

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

ERT/RN 37/2017

RULING
Before:

Shameer Janhangeer Vice-President

Vijay Kumar Mohit Member

Karen K. Veerapen (Mrs) Member

Arassen Kallee Member

In the matter of: -

Ms Mansa Daby

and
Disputant

Open University of Mauritius
Respondent

Ipo:

Ministry of Education and Human Resources, Tertiary Education and Scientific Research
Co-Respondent

The present matter has been referred to the Tribunal by the Commission for 
Conciliation and Mediation for arbitration pursuant to section 69 (7) of the Employment 
Relations Act (the "Act"). The dispute has been referred on the following amended Terms of 
Reference:

Whether I should be have been confirmed in my position of Assistant Lecturer/Lecturer
held at the Open University of Mauritius, with effect from 01 August 2015.

1
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All the parties were assisted by Counsel in the present matter. The Disputant was 
assisted Mr D. Ramano, of Counsel. Whereas the Respondent was assisted by Miss B. H. 
Maherally, State Counsel, instructed by the Deputy Chief State Attorney and the Co- 
Respondent was assisted by Miss D. P. Punchu, State Counsel, instructed by the Principal State 
Attorney.

The hearing of the matter had commenced with the deposition of the Disputant. 
However, the Respondent has now raised a preliminary objection in law to the hearing of the 
present dispute. Counsel for the Disputant did not object to the Respondent raising the 
preliminary objection and the matter was accordingly put for arguments.

The preliminary objection in law raised by the Respondent reads as follows:

The Respondent moves that the present dispute be set aside inasmuch as the granting 
of an award in terms of the Terms of Reference of the labour dispute before the 
Tribunal will be inconsistent with sections 5 and 10 of the Open University of Mauritius 
Act and thus, be contrary to section 72 (5) of the Employment Relations Act.

Counsel for the Respondent has notably referred to section 5 of the Open University of 
Mauritius Act in her submissions. This deals with the functions of the Open University and is in 
mandatory terms. She specifically referred to sub-paragraph (p), whereby the Open University 
has the exclusive function of laying down the conditions of service of staff, which are their 
terms of employment. Referring to section 10 of the Open University of Mauritius Act, it was 
submitted that the Board appoints the academic staff under section 10 (2)(a)(ii) of the aforesaid 
Act. Reference was then made to section 72 (5) of the Act.

Counsel for the Respondent thereafter referred to a letter dated 11 July 2014 from the 
Respondent addressed to the Disputant whereby the terms and conditions have been laid out. 
The terms and conditions have been decided by the Open University and this function as per 
the law rests solely with the Respondent. The Disputant is asking the Tribunal to decide on the 
terms and conditions laid down by the Respondent in asking the Tribunal to determine whether 
she ought to have been confirmed with effect from August 2015. As the Tribunal operates 
under the Act, there is an impediment as to its jurisdiction in this matter as its award will rule 
on the Disputant's probationary period, which is not for the Tribunal to decide. Having regard 

2
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to section 72 (5) of the Act, the award of the Tribunal will be inconsistent with section 5 of the 
Open University of Mauritius Act. Furthermore, under section 10 of the aforesaid Act, an 
appointment rests with the Board of the Respondent and it is not for the Tribunal to decide 
whether or not to confirm the Disputant in the circumstances.

Counsel for the Disputant has, on the other hand, submitted that pursuant to section 70 
(1) of the Act, it is mandatory for the Tribunal to enquire into the dispute. It is not contested 
that the Open University can lay codes of conduct and conditions of service, referring to section 
5 (p) ofthe Open University of Mauritius Act. The Tribunal, however, has to see if the conditions 
of service have been respected. The one-year probationary period of the contract is not being 
contested. It is for the Tribunal to see if justice has been done in the interpretation of these 
terms and conditions. Section 5 of the aforementioned Act only sets out the functions of the 
institution, in order to enable it to fulfil its mission. The Open University is responsible for the 
organisation of work; it may set the terms and conditions of service, but when there is a breach, 
it is not for them to decide upon the breach. A victim must have a forum to turn to when the 
exercise of appointing or of confirming is flawed. Counsel submitted that the Disputant can 
seek a remedy from this Tribunal.

Counsel for the Disputant further submitted that nowhere in the Open University of 
Mauritius Act is it explicitly stated that the Act has no jurisdiction in the matter. The former Act 
has not precluded the jurisdiction ofthe Tribunal. Reference was also made to section 5 (b), (d) 
and (h) of the Open University of Mauritius Act and to the power of the Tertiary Education 
Commission over the Respondent in relation to these sub-paragraphs. It was submitted that the 
Tribunal has jurisdiction to oversee whether what is set in sections 5 and 10 of the aforesaid Act 
are along the lines of natural justice.

It should also be noted that State Counsel for the Co-Respondent stated that the latter 
is abiding by the decision of the Tribunal and thereby choose not to offer any submissions in 
relation to the preliminary objection in law.

The basis of the present preliminary objection in law is section 72 (5) of the Act. In the 
context of the objection raised, it would be useful to produce the wordings of this provision. 
This notably provides:

3
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72. A ward and its effects

(5) An award under sections 56(5) and 70(1) shall not contain any 
provision inconsistent with any enactment, other than a Remuneration Regulations, 
relating to the terms or conditions of, or affecting, employment, and any such 
provision shall, to the extent of the inconsistency, be void.

In the present matter, it has not been disputed that any eventual award of the Tribunal 
in relation to the present labour dispute would be under section 70 (1) of the Act. Section 72 (5) 
of the Act clearly states that the award of the Tribunal shall not contain any provision 
inconsistent with any enactment relating to the terms or conditions of, or affecting, 
employment. It also specifies that any such provision in the award shall be void to the extent of 
the inconsistency. It may be noted that an exception has been provided for in respect of 
Remuneration Regulations.

The preliminary objection in law has also cited sections 5 and 10 of the Open University 
of Mauritius Act. The relevant provisions of these two sections read as follows:

5. Functions of Open University

The Open University shall have such functions as are necessary to attain its 
objects most effectively and shall, in particular—

(p) provide, control and maintain discipline among the learners and 
academic and general staff and lay down the conditions of service of 
such staff, including their codes of conduct;

10. Functions and powers of Board

(1) The Board shall be the governing body having the direction and 
superintendence of the Open University and its principal functions shall include—

(a) devising or approving strategic plans and policies for the Open 
University;

(b) overseeing its management and development;

(c) monitoring and reviewing its operations; and

(d) providing rigorous accountability standards in its various 
operations.

4
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(2) The Board may-

fa) on behalf of the Open University—

(ii) appoint the academic and general staff;

(b) do all such things as may be necessary for, or incidental or 
conducive to, the performance of its functions under 
subsection (1).

Section 5 of the Open University of Mauritius Act refers to the functions of the Open 
University. It is clearly stated, in the mandatory sense, that the Open University shall lay down 
the conditions of service of academic staff. Furthermore, section 10 of the aforesaid Act, at 
subsection (2), inter alia provides that the Respondent's governing body, which is the Board, 
may appoint the academic staff. It must be noted that Counsel for the Disputant has not 
disputed the powers of the Open University under the aforementioned provisions of its Act.

Counsel for the Disputant has, in fact, submitted that once a labour dispute has been 
duly referred to the Tribunal, the latter is bound to enquire into the matter in accordance with 
section 70 (1) of the Act. It cannot be disputed that the Tribunal bound to enquire into a labour 
dispute referred to it under section 69 (7) of the Act. However, the Tribunal is always entitled to 
determine whether it has the necessary jurisdiction to arbitrate on a dispute referred before it.

The Tribunal, in view of these particular contentions, would refer to a ruling of the then 
Permanent Arbitration Tribunal in Mrs C. M. Tatiah and Development Bank of Mauritius (RN 
758) delivered on 4 August 2004, which was followed by the Tribunal in the matter of S. Dawon 
and Mauritius Institute of Training and Development (ERT/RN 163/15 to ERT/RN 170/15). 
Therein, the Permanent Arbitration Tribunal notably stated:

The Tribunal wishes to address itself first on whether once a referral is made, it
is bound to adjudicate on the dispute. Indeed Section 83 of the Industrial Relations Act 
1973 as amended states "Where any dispute is referred to the Tribunal by the Minister 
under section 82, the Tribunal shall, with all diligence, inquire into the dispute and 
make an award on it". Section 5 of the Interpretation and General Clauses Act defines 
"shall" as "may be read as imperative", (the underlining is ours).

5
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Are we to hear any dispute referred to us by the Minister if the Tribunal finds 
that the dispute does not fall within the legal parameters of an industrial dispute as 
per the Industrial Relations Act 1973 as amended?

Russell on Arbitration, 18th Edition by Anthony Walton Q.C. at page 73 reads:

"It can hardly be within the arbitrator's jurisdiction to decide whether or not a 
condition precedent to his jurisdiction has been fulfilled. However, an arbitrator is 
always entitled to inquire whether or not he has jurisdiction, (see Brown v. 
Oesterreichischer Waldbesitzer R.G.m.b.h. (1954) (Q.B.8) An umpire faced with a 
dispute whether or not there was a contract from which alone his jurisdiction, if any, 
deal with the matter at all and leave the parties to go to the court, or he can consider 
the matter and if he forms the view that the contract upon which the claimant is 
relying and from which, if established, alone his jurisdiction can arise is in truth the 
contract, he can proceed accordingly. (Per Roskill J. in Lunada Exportadora and others 
v. Tamari and Sons and Others (1967) L. Lloyd's Rep. 353 at page 364)."

The Tribunal concedes therefore that whenever a compulsory arbitration is 
referred to it, it has no choice than to inquire into the dispute provided it satisfies the 
Tribunal that it is an industrial dispute.

More recently, in relation to a similar contention made before the Supreme Court in the 
case of D. Ramyead-Banymandhub v The Employment Relations Tribunal [2018 SCJ 252], the 
following was stated:

The Tribunal therefore had the duty to enquire into the "substance" of the arguments 
put forward by the parties with regard to the objections raised by the co-respondent, 
and it could only adjudicate on these objections within the limits of its terms of 
reference.

The Tribunal ought to be satisfied of its jurisdiction to hear and enquire into a particular 
matter in order to enable it to duly deliver an award. The preliminary objection in law presently 
raised is contesting the jurisdiction of the Tribunal to give an award as per the Terms of 
Reference of the labour dispute as same would be contrary to section 72 (5) of the Act. The 
Tribunal cannot therefore concur with this particular argument put forward by the Disputant.

Counsel for the Disputant has also submitted that the Open University of Mauritius Act 
has not expressly excluded the Tribunal's jurisdiction to arbitrate in the present matter. 
Although, this is not being disputed, it must be emphasized that the preliminary objection has 
been raised pursuant to section 72 (5) of the Act, which would render any award void for being 
inconsistent with sections 5 and 10 of the Open University of Mauritius Act in relation to terms 

6
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or conditions of employment. It has never been contented by the Respondent that the 
Tribunal's jurisdiction is being excluded pursuant to the provisions of the Open University of 
Mauritius Act. The Tribunal cannot therefore concur with the Disputant on this point.

Counsel for the Disputant has also argued that the Tribunal has jurisdiction to oversee 
whether what is set in sections 5 and 10 of the Open University of Mauritius Act are along the 
lines of natural justice. With regard to this argument, it should be noted that the Tribunal is 
bound to enquire into a labour dispute that has been referred to it pursuant to relevant 
provisions of the Act. The Tribunal, however, does not have any jurisdiction to enquire into 
whether any particular section of an enactment is in conformity with the rules of natural 
justice. That would be within the province of the Supreme Court, which has unlimited 
jurisdiction to hear and determine any civil or criminal proceedings under any law other than a 
disciplinary law. Indeed, the Constitution of Mauritius confers original jurisdiction upon the 
Supreme Court to determine whether any provision of the Constitution has been contravened 
and would be the proper forum for any action praying for Constitutional redress.

Although the Tribunal has jurisdiction in matters of labour disputes as defined under 
section 2 of the Act, which would include terms and conditions of employment, it cannot be 
overlooked that pursuant to sections 5 (p) and 10 (2)(a)(ii) of the Open University of Mauritius 
Act, the Respondent has been conferred with the power to lay down the conditions of service 
of its academic staff (which would include the Disputant) and its Board has been entrusted with 
the power to appoint the academic staff. It may also be noted, from section 10 (l)(b) and (2)(b) 
of the aforesaid Act, that one of the principal functions of the Board is to oversee the 
management and development of the Open University and that it may do all such things as may 
be necessary for the performance of this function.

It has not been disputed that the remedy sought as per the Terms of Reference of the 
dispute relates to the confirmation of the Disputant in her position as Assistant 
Lecturer/Lecturer and that, if granted, may amount to the Disputant being confirmed in her 
appointment as Assistant Lecturer/Lecturer at the Open University of Mauritius. The remedy of 
confirming the Disputant in her position falls squarely within her terms and conditions of 
employment and if her confirmation is so awarded, the Tribunal would fall foul of the 
provisions of section 72 (5) of the Act in being inconsistent with sections 5 (p) and 10 (2)(a)(ii) of 
the Open University of Mauritius Act in relation to the terms or conditions of the Disputant's 
employment.

7
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Although, the Disputant is contending that the Tribunal may enquire to see if the terms 
and conditions of service have been respected, the Tribunal, having noted the provisions of 
section 5 (p) as well as that of section 10 (1) and (2) of the Open University of Mauritius Act and 
having paid heed to section 72 (5) of the Act, cannot usurp the statutory powers conferred to 
the Respondent in possibly awarding that the Disputant should be confirmed as Assistant 
Lecturer/Lecturer at the Respondent institution.

The Tribunal has also taken note of the Disputant's argument that the Open University 
may also be pinched by the Tertiary Education Commission in referring to section 5 (b), (d) and 
(h) of the Open University of Mauritius Act. Although, the Disputant is making an analogy with 
section 5 (p) of the Open University of Mauritius Act, the present preliminary objection in law is 
based on, inter alia, sections 5 (p) and 10 (2)(a)(ii) of the aforesaid Act and is not concerned 
with the other sub-paragraphs of section 5 referred to and nor is it concerned with the 
supervisory functions and powers of the Tertiary Education Commission.

The Tribunal therefore finds that the preliminary objection in law raised by the 
Respondent must succeed.

The dispute is therefore set aside.

8
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(SD)Shameer Janhangeer
(Vice-President)

(SD)Vijay Kumar Mohit
(Member)

(SD)Karen K. Veerapen (Mrs)
(Member)

(SD)Arassen Kallee
(Member)

Date: 20th September 2018

9



3630 The Mauritius Government Gazette

General Notice No. 1360 of 2018

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310)
(730)
(730)

MU/M/2018/27708 (320) 09/08/2018
SOUTHGATE CONSULTING LTD 
c/o Appavoo Business Centre,
29 Bis Mere Barthelemy Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(310)
(730)
(730)

(511)
(540)

(511)
(540)

MU/M/2018/27682 (320) 06/08/2018
ILIAD GROUP LTD
C/o Sebastien Lamusse
Le HUB, Valentina
Phoenix, Republic of Mauritius
35 and 36
ILIAD SOLUTIONS IMMOBILIERES 
(and logo)
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(310) MU/M/2018/27490 (320) 09/07/2018
(730) Red Bull GmbH
(730) Am Brunnen 1, 5330 Fuschl am See, 

Austria
(740) Mr Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, 

ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) 32

<mo’ VITALIZES
BODY AND MIND

(310) 25456/2017 (320) 18/07/2017
(330) 174333346 30/01/2017 FR
(730) CCA INTERNATIONAL

1, Rue Jeanne D'Arc, 92130, Issy Les 
Moulineaux, France

(740) Mr Sivakumaren Mardemootoo, 
Attorney-at-Law 
3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, Vieux 
Conseil Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9, 35, 36, 38,41 and 42)
(540) CCA INTERNATIONAL

(310) 24277/2016 (320) 15/12/2016
(330) 16/4285956 08/07/2016 FR
(730) SANOFI

54, rue La Boetie, 75008 Paris, FRANCE
(740) IBL LTD

10 Dr Ferriere St, Port Louis
(511) (5)

<40) SULIQUA

(310) 26261/2017 (320) 30/11/2017
(330) 174366497 06/06/2017 FR
(730) CCA INTERNATIONAL

1, Rue Jeanne D'Arc, 92130, Issy Les 
Moulineaux, France

(740) Sivakumaren Mardemootoo, Attorney-at-Law 
Mardemootoo Solicitors, 3rd Floor, Les 
Jamalacs Building, Vieux Conseil Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (9,35,36,38,41 and 42)
(540) CCA INTERNATIONAL (Stylised) & 

Device

CCA
to________________ _

INTERNATIONAL4^

(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26262/2017 (320) 30/11/2017
174366477 06/06/2017 FR
CCA INTERNATIONAL
1, Rue Jeanne D'Arc, 92130, Issy Les 
Moulineaux, France
Sivakumaren Mardemootoo, Attorney-at-Law 
Mardemootoo Solicitors, 3rd Floor, Les 
Jamalacs Building, Vieux Conseil Street, 
Port-Louis
(9,35, 36,38,41 and 42)
CCA INTERNATIONAL (Stylised) & 
Device

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26738/2018 (320) 26/02/2018
Zoetis Schweiz GmbH
Scharenmoosstrasse 99, 8052 Zurich, 
Switzerland
Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law 
7th Floor, Chancery House, Lislet Geoffrey 
Street, Port Louis
(5)

POULVAC

CCA
L__________

INTERNATIONAL4^
L'experience client nouvelle generation®
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26776/2018 (320) 02/03/2018
Independence Blue Cross, LLC
1901 Market Street, Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania 19103, U.S.A.
RC Payen, Trademark Agent
10 Dr Ferriere Street, Port Louis 
(9,35,38,41,42 and 44)

QUIL

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26794/2018 (320) 07/03/2018
Zoetis Schweiz GmbH
Scharenmoosstrasse 99, 8052 Zurich, 
Switzerland
Ms Josephine Rivalland-Robert,
Attorney-at-Law
Etude Guy Rivalland, 7th Floor, Chancery
House, Lislet Geoffrey Street, Port-Louis 
(5)

AE POXINE
(310) 27096/2018 (320) 30/04/2018
(330) 4 409 571 01/12/2017 FR
(730) E. REMY MARTIN & C”

20, rue de la Societe Vinicole, 
16100 Cognac, France

(740) RC Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL Ltd, 10, Dr Ferriere Street, Port Louis 

(511) (33)
(540) ST-REMY XO dressed bottle 2017

(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

27097/2018 (320) 30/04/2018
4 409 550 01/12/2017 FR
E. REMY MARTIN & C°
20, rue de la Societe Vinicole, 16100 Cognac, 
France
R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, 10 Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis
(33)
ST-REMY VSOP dressed bottle 2017

(310) 27384/2018 (320) 25/06/2018
(730) PRONTO SOFTWARE LIMITED

20, Lakeside Drive, East Burwood, Victoria
3151,, Australia

(740) Pravin Barthia,
Trademark Agent of ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9 and 42)
(540) PRONTO Stylised Word

PRONTO

(310) 27612/2018 (320) 24/07/2018
(730) LABORATOIRES DE BIOLOGIE

VEGETALE YVES ROCHER
La Croix des Archers, 56200 La Gacilly, 
France

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Room 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (3)
(540) YVES ROCHER FEEL STRONGER & 

DEVICE

YVES ROCHER

FEEL STRONGER
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(310) 27684/2018 (320) 06/08/2018
(730) SHANGHAI WANYOO INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
ROOM 230, NO. 668, XINZHUAN
HIGHWAY, SONGJIANG HIGH 
TECHNOLOGY PARK, CAOHEJING 
DEVELOPMENT ZONE, SONGJIANG 
DISTRICT, SHANGHAI, CHINA 

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (9, 35, 41 and 43)
(540) Whale (logo)

(310) 27685/2018 (320) 06/08/2018
(730) SHANGHAI WANYOO INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
ROOM 230, NO. 668, XINZHUAN 
HIGHWAY, SONGJIANG HIGH 
TECHNOLOGY PARK, CAOHEJING 
DEVELOPMENT ZONE, SONGJIANG 
DISTRICT, SHANGHAI,
CHINA

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (9, 35, 41 and 43)
(540) WANYOO

(310) 27686/2018 (320) 06/08/2018
(730) SHANGHAI WANYOO INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
ROOM 230, NO. 668, XINZHUAN 
HIGHWAY, SONGJIANG HIGH 
TECHNOLOGY PARK, CAOHEJING 
DEVELOPMENT ZONE, SONGJIANG 
DISTRICT, SHANGHAI, CHINA 

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (9, 35,41 and 43)
(540) WANG YU WANG KA( in Chinese 

characters)

R8®RE0D0

(310) 27747/2018 (320) 17/08/2018
(730) CASTROL LIMITED

Technology Centre, Whitchurch Hill, 
Pangboume, Reading RG8 7QR,
United Kingdom

(740) Mr R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, 10, Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (4)

(540) MAGNATEC

(310) 27759/2018 (320) 21/08/2018
(730) HORING LIH INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

4F„ NO. 18, LANE 327, SEC.2, CHUNG 
SHAN RD., ZHONGHE DIST., NEW TAIPEI 
CITY 235, TAIWAN

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (9)
(540) HORING LIH & DEVICE

OD HORING LIH

(310) 27781/2018 (320) 23/08/2018
(730) SE Tylose GmbH & Co. KG

Industriepark Kalle-Albert, Rheingaustrasse 
190-196, 65203 Wiesbaden, Germany

(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, 10 Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (1)

<540) TYLOSE
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(310)
(730)

27803/2018 (320) 28/08/2018
Zainab bibi RAJBUSSEEA

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

15, Rue Jemmapes St, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius
(3) (511) 

(540)

27826/2018 (320) 03/09/2018
Centre de Documentation et de Dialogue 
32, Sir Virgil Naz Street, Port-Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius
(41 and 45)
CDD - Centre De Documentation & De
Dialogue (and logo)

IB DE DOCUMENTATlOh

KZ fcZ ^Z & DE DIALOGUE

(310) 27834/2018 (320) 04/09/2018
(330) 40-2018-0029151 06/03/2018 KR
(730) HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY,

KIA MOTORS CORPORATION
12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul, 
Republic of Korea

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney 
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) Smartstream (Stylised)

Smartstream

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

27843/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
BANK OF AMERICA CORPORATION 
100 North Tryon Street, Charlotte, North 
Carolina 28255, U.S.A.
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes 
(36 and 42)

BOFA

(310) 27844/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
(730) GHANIY IMPORTS LTD

La Lucie, Morcellement Deep River Beau 
Champ, Bel-Air Riviere Seche, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (30)
(540) Super Gold Logo

(310) 27845/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
(730) MIPSIT DIGITAL LTD

No. 3, Tranquille Avenue, Vacoas, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney-at-Law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) mips SMART COMMERCE & logo

SMA3T 
COMMERCE
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(310) 27852/2018 (320) 07/09/2018
(730) LITTLE T and A Company LTD

CNR Mere Barthelemy & d'Artois Streets, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (44)
(540) RUN AESTHETIC and logo

(310) 27853/2018 (320) 07/09/2018
(730) LITTLE T and A Company LTD

CNR Mere Barthelemy & d'Artois Streets, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (43)
(540) Miss A- HEALTHY CAFE and logo

RUN AESTHETICS

(310) 27863/2018 (320) 11/09/2018
(730) MAMMAMIA CHE GELATO ! LTD

39, Route St Jean, Quatre Bomes, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (29, 30, 32 and 43)
(540) BELLA ITALIA LOGO

(310) 27865/2018 (320) 11/09/2018
(730) QUALCOMM INCORPORATED

5775 Morehouse Drive, San Diego,
CA 92121, U.S.A.

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attomey-at-Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9, 38 and 42)

<540) QUALCOMM

(310) 27868/2018 (320) 12/09/2018
(730) SAKEL FOKEER

DEVANY LANE, ST. MARTIN, BEL
OMBRE, REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS 

(511) (25, 39 and 41)
(540) ROLO & Logo

(310) 27870/2018 (320) 12/09/2018
(730) KIRSH CO. LTD

B. S. House, Royal Road, La Marie, 
Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (1)

,540) PERFECTOSE

ROLO
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

27882/2018 (320) 12/09/2018
Emsa GmbH
Grevener Damm 215-225, 48282 Emsdetten,
Germany
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(7, 8, 11 and 21)
emsa Logo (in colour)

(310) 27884/2018 (320) 13/09/2018
(730) LeadBusiness & Networking Solutions 

Ltd

(740)

(511)
(540)

19 Church Street, Port-Louis 1113-03, 
Republic of Mauritius
Pravin Barthia (Trade Mark Agent)
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church 
Street, Port-Louis
(35, 38, 42 and 45)
SANCTEOUS CONNECT BUSINESS 
& Logo

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 20 September, 2018 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1361 of 2018
TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (HI) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310) MU/M/2011/14194 (320) 25/10/2011
(730) TRIMETYS LTD
(730) BARACHOIS ESTATE, TAMARIN, 

REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS
(511) 43
(540) sakoa Boutik Hotel Mauritius

Boutlk Hotel Mauritius

(310) MU/M/2018/27554 (320) 17/07/2018 
(730) ROUDYASH CO LTD
(730) 35, Idriss Goomanee Street (Ex Limit 2), 

Plaisance, Rose Hill, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) 11 and 37
(540) ROUDYASH LRC (and logo)

IkTroudyash LRC
W LANDINAFF RENOVATION & CONSTRUCTION

We Build Your Dreams.

(310) MU/M/2016/23643 (320) 08/09/2016 
(730) Business Parks of Mauritius Ltd (BPML) 
(730) 7th Floor-Wing A, Cyber Tower 1,

Ebene Cybercity, Republic of Mauritius 
(511) 36
(540) LANDSCOPE Mauritius

landScope
■Mauritius

(310) MU/M/2018/26878 (320) 23/03/2018 
(730) VNV NUTRIACTIVES LTD
(730) La Maison Coloniale, Royal Road, 

Pointe Aux Canonniers, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) 5 and 31
(540) mon DHA Vegetarian (and logo)
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(310) MU/M/2018/27480 (320) 09/07/2018 
(730) HERMES PROPERTIES LTD 
(730) 12th Floor Standard Chartered Tower,

Cybercity, Ebene, Republic of Mauritius 
(740) Robin Logendra Appaya

Suite No 6, Hennessy Tower,
Pope Hennessy Street, Port Louis 

(511) 35 and 36

(54°) TRIANON CITY
shopping Mall
by Hermes Properties

(310)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(5H) 
(540)

MU/M/2016/23018 (320) 09/06/2016
New Mauritius Hotels Ltd
Beachcomber House,
Botanical Garden Street,
Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius
Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law 
7th Floor, Chancery House,
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis
16, 20, 21, 24, 29, 30, 33, 35, 39 and 43
Beachcomber Mauritius (Logo)

(310) MU/M/2018/27569 (320) 17/07/2018
(730) Saint Aubin Limitee
(730) Savanne Road, Saint Aubin 61501, 

Republic of Mauritius
(511) 30 and 43
(540) Bois Cheri Green Tea logo

______ ^2.______

(310)
(730)
(730)

(511)
(540)

MU/M/2018/27570 (320) 17/07/2018 
Saint Aubin Limitee
Savanne Road, Saint Aubin 61501, 
Republic of Mauritius
30 and 43
Bois Cheri Ice Tea & logo

BOIS CHERI
--------— SINCE 18 92 ------ ------

BOIS CHERI
--------—’ SINCE 1892 —

(310) 26488/2018 (320) 10/01/2018
(730) Hankook Tire Co., Ltd

133, Teheran-ro (Yeoksam-dong),
Gangnam-gu, Seoul, Rep.of Korea

(740) Dave Boolauky. Attomey-at-Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court, St. Denis 
Street, Port Louis

(511) (36 and 42)
(540) Technodome logo

Technodome

(310) 26489/2018 (320) 10/01/2018
(730) Hankook Tire Co., Ltd

133, Teheran-ro (Yeoksam-dong), Gangnam- 
gu, Seoul, Rep.of Korea

(740) Dave Boolauky. Attomey-at-Law 
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court, 
St. Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (36 and 42)
(540) Technotrac logo

Technotrac
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(310) 26490/2018 (320) 10/01/2018
(730) Hankook Tire Co., Ltd

133, Teheran-ro (Yeoksam-dong), Gangnam- 
gu, Seoul, Rep.of Korea

(740) Dave Boolauky. Attomey-at-Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court, St. Denis 
Street, Port Louis

(511) (36 and 42)
(540) Technoring logo

Technoring

(310) 26526/2018 (320) 22/01/2018
(730) APPLE INC.

1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014, U.S.A.
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attomey-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (38)
(540) APPLE logo (Black)

(310) 26527/2018 (320) 22/01/2018
(730) The Procter & Gamble Company

One Procter & Gamble Plaza, Cincinnati, Ohio 
45202, United States of America

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes

(511) (3)

<540) ACTIVREPAIR

(310) 27156/2018 (320) 11/05/2018
(730) BR IP Holder LLC

P.O. Box 9141, Canton, Massachusetts 02021, 
U.S.A.

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at Law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (29, 30, 32 and 43)
(540) baskins BR robbins logo (horizontal)

baSkiN robblNj

(310) 27171/2018 (320) 17/05/2018
(730) GUROK TURIZM VE MADENCILlK

ANONlM §IRKETi
Eski§ehir Yolu, 5. Km, Merkez - Kiitahya /, 
Turkey

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attomey-at-Law
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St James Court, St Denis 
Street, Port-Louis

(511) (3)
(540) JOALI (Fig.)

JOALI

(310) 27251/2018 (320) 04/06/2018
(730) SANLIUYIDU (CHINA) CO., LTD.

Wuli Industrial Zone, Jinjiang City, Fujian 
Province 362200,
People’s Republic of China

(740) Kashish International Limited, 
Trademark Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 

(511) (25)
(540) 361 One Degree Beyond

561°
ONE DEGREE BEYOND
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(310) 27592/2018 (320) 20/07/2018
(730) NOVARTIS AG

4002 Basel, Switzerland
(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law

Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court,
St. Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (5)

<540> PIQRAY

(310) 27600/2018 (320) 23/07/2018
(730) HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY

12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul, 
Rep.of Korea

(740) Dave Boolauky, Attorney-at-Law 
Suite 620, 6th Floor, St. James Court, 
St. Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (12)

<540) STYX
(310) 27696/2018 (320) 06/08/2018
(730) PT Garudafood Putra Putri Jaya

Jalan Bintaro Raya No. 10A, Jakarta Selatan 
12240, DKI Jakarta, Indonesia

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (30)
(540) GERY (special form)

(310) 27697/2018 (320) 06/08/2018
(730) PT Garudafood Putra Putri Jaya

Jalan Bintaro Raya No. 10A, Jakarta Selatan 
12240, DKI Jakarta, Indonesia

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attorney at law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (30)
(540) CHOCOLATOS (special form)

(310) 27750/2018 (320) 17/08/2018
(730) WONG TIN WAH LTD

28 Louis Pasteur Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25)
(540) TOPSTAR Logo

(310) 27788/2018 (320) 27/08/2018
(730) CAUDAN LEISURE LTD

8th Floor, Dias Pier, Le Caudan Waterfront, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (43)
(540) L'ARTISTA (Italian Cuisine) (and logo)

V - ITALIAN CUISINE -

(310) 27795/2018 (320) 28/08/2018
(730) FLASH MODELS LTD

FIRST FLOOR, MTML BUILDING, 
CYBERCITY, EBENE, REPUBLIC OF 
MAURITIUS

(511) (35 and 41)
(540) FRESHFACES

FRESHFACES

(310) 27791/2018 (320) 27/08/2018
(330) 00126/2018 28/02/2018 CH
(730) Rieker Holding AG

Stockwiesenstrasse 1, 8240 Thayngen, 
Switzerland

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (18 and 25) 

<540) RIEKER
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(310) 27792/2018 (320) 27/08/2018
(730) RETSOL INTERNATIONAL

3rd Floor Harbour Front Building, President 
John Kennedy Street, Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Mr Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent, 
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port Louis

(511) (35)

540) RETSOL

(310) 27794/2018 (320) 28/08/2018
(730) LUX Hospitality Ltd

Pierre Simonet Street, Floreal, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (43)
(540) SOCIO

SOCIO
(310)
(730)

(5U)
(540)

27789/2018 (320) 27/08/2018
CAUL)AN DEVELOPMENT LTD
8th Floor, Dias Pier, Le Caudan Waterfront, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
(43)
L'ENTRACTE (Cafe, Bar, Restaurant)

entr
CAFt • BAR RESTAURANT

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

27804/2018 (320) 29/08/2018
Bashira Bint Basheer Woodeen SOOSOR 
Roshan Lane, Le Comue, Ste. Croix, 
Republic of Mauritius
(18 and 25)
SCORPION & Logo

SCORPION
(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

27805/2018 (320) 29/08/2018
MATAORALTD
Suite Co 2, Ebene Junction Rue de la 
Democratic, Ebene, Republic of Mauritius 
(25,28,41 and 43)
SUNBURN BEACH FESTIVAL & LOGO

(310) 27806/2018 (320) 29/08/2018
(730) Desbro Trading Limited

P.O. Box 98, Bell Village, Port-Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Me. Gerard H de Froberville, Attorney at Law 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (31)

(540) ULTRASTIC & Logo

UltraLtic
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(310) 27809/2018 (320) 29/08/2018
(730) XSW Sport Wear Ltd

15, Stevenson Street, Les Casernes, Curepipe, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25 and 41)
(540) SWEAT N LAUGH Logo - Have Fun and 

Get Fit

(310) 27817/2018 (320) 30/08/2018
(730) TOYOTA JIDOSHA KABUSHIKI KAISHA 

(also trading as TOYOTA MOTOR 
CORPORATION)
1, Toyota-cho, Toyota-shi, Aichi-ken, Japan 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (12)

<540) HARRIER

(310) 27813/2018 (320) 30/08/2018
(730) DDS Knowledge Centre Ltd

Tamariniers Street, Roche Bois, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 39)
(540) DDS Maritime with a special design

DDS MARITIME

(310) 27816/2018 (320) 30/08/2018
(730) Ceridian (Mauritius) Ltd

Level 9, Cyber Tower 1, Ebene , 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 42)

<540) AppFactory

(310) 27812/2018 (320) 29/08/2018
(730) Shangri-La International Hotel Management 

Limited
Trident Chambers, P.O. Box 146, Road Town, 
Tortola, Brt. Virgin Islands

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(5H) (41)
(540) S Device

(310) 27818/2018 (320) 30/08/2018
(730) Air Mauritius Limited

19th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, President 
John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law 
19th Floor, Chancery House, Lislet Geoffrey 
Street, Port-Louis

(511) (35)
(540) SIGNATURE COCKTAIL 

COMPETITION (logo)

aiR mauRmus SIGNATURE COCKTAIL
COMPETITIONS/) 18
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(310) 27821/2018 (320) 31/08/2018
(730) The Gillette Company LLC

One Gillette Park, Boston Massachusetts

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

02127, U.S.A.
Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 
(8)

DIVINE

(740)

(511)
(540)

27824/2018 (320) 31/08/2018
Super-Max SA (Pty) Ltd
1st Floor, Imperial Retail Logistics 
Warehouse, Freedom Way, Montague Gardens, 
Western Cape 7435, South Africa 
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(3)

VAYA SMOOTH
(310) 27832/2018 (320) 04/09/2018
(730) FUNFM LTD

F2 Moorgate House, Sir William Newton 
Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (38)
(540) FUNFM__________

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

27833/2018 (320) 04/09/2018
ALL CLEAN GROUP LTD
25-27 Louis Pasteur Street, 3rd Floor Aisha 
Building, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
(3 and 37)
TheEcoSmart and Logo Car Wash On 
Demand

FUNFM

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

27849/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
TRESOR NOIR LTD
C/o Neepra Corporate Finance Ltd, Espace 
Ocean, 1st Floor, Royal Road, Grand Bay, 
Republic of Mauritius
(14)
TRESOR NOIR (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(5H) 
(540)

27837/2018 (320) 05/09/2018
Transact 24 (Mauritius) Ltd
C/o Trustlink International Limited, Suite 
201 /2 A, 2nd Floor, 1 Cybercity, Ebene, 
Republic of Mauritius
(36)

CEEVO

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

27839/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
ISLAND COMMUNICATIONS LTD
13C Volcy De La Faye Street, Beau Bassin, 
Republic of Mauritius
(9)
iSense Logo

(310) 27848/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
(730) R Lofur Quality Marketing Ltd

Cremation Road, Tyack, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (11)
(540) HAOTIC and Logo

HAOTIC



3644 The Mauritius Government Gazette

(310) 27840/2018 (320) 06/09/2018
(730) Aztomix International Limited

C/o Abax Corporate Services Ltd, 6th Floor, 
Tower A, 1 CyberCity, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Vandana Munisami, Barrister-at-Law 
c/o Global Intellectual Property Focus, Law 
Firm, Ebene Junction, Unit 016, Rue de la 
Democratic, Ebene 72203

(511) (9 and 35)
(540) TOPSHOPPER + logo

(310) 27836/2018 (320) 05/09/2018
(730) Jawahar Lail ATHAL

204, Jade Court, Jummah Mosque Street, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (41 and 45)
(540) YUVA - Breaking The Cycle of Poverty 

and Ensuring a Bright Future

YUVA
BREAKING

THE CYCLE OF 
POVERTY AND 

ENSURING 
\ BRIGHT 

FUTURE

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffrey Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 17 September, 2018 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mohammad 
Ayaz KHADUN has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General, for leave to change his names 
Mohammad Ayaz into that of Ayaz, so that in 
the future, he shall bear the name and surname of 
Ayaz KHADUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Mohammad Ayaz KHADUN
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403642)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Vijay Luxhmy 
DEENOO (bom PUCHOOA) has applied to 
the Honourable Attorney-General, for leave to 
change her names Vijay Luxhmy into those of 
Vijaya Luxhmy, so that in the future, she shall 
bear the names and surname of Vijaya Luxhmy 
PUCHOOA.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Mrs Vijay Luxhmy DEENOO
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403630)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Rishi 
ROSEEAWON have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General, for leave to change the name of 
their minor son Vynash into that of Laksh, so that 
in the future, he shall bear the name and surname 
of Laksh ROSEEAWON.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Mr and Mrs Rishi ROSEEAWON
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/403623)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs 
Hervey Didier FRANCOIS have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
the names of their minor son Ayten Didier into 
those of Ayton Didier so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Ayton Didier 
FRANCOIS.

Objections, if any should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
this notice.
(Rec. No. 17/403600)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Sanjoo LOBIN 

has applied to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change his name Sanjoo into those 
of Muhammad Ismail so that in the future he 
shall bear the names and surname of Muhammad 
Ismail LOBIN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
this notice.
(Rec. No. 17/403598)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mrs Jaywantee 

TAKUN (bom Jankee) of Seesunkur Road, Quartier 
Militaire has applied to the Honourable Attorney­
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General, for leave to change her name Jaywantee 
into that of Sanah so that in the future, she shall 
bear the name and surname of Sanah JANKEE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 21 August 2018.

Mrs Jaywantee TAKUN (bom Jankee) 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403577)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Ahmad 
MUHAMODSAROAR of 55, Dr Hassen Sakir 
Street, Plaine Verte, Port Louis has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General, for leave to change 
his surname MUHAMODSAROAR into that of 
SAROAR, so that in the future, he shall bear the 
name and surname of Ahmad SAROAR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 29th August 2018.

Mr Ahmad MUHAMODSAROAR
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403589)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Ashfaq 
MUHAMODSAROAR of 55, Dr Hassen Sakir 
Street, Plaine Verte, Port Louis has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General, for leave to change 
his surname MUHAMODSAROAR into that of 
SAROAR, so that in the future, he shall bear the 
name and surname of Ashfaq SAROAR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 30th August 2018.

Mr Ashfaq MUHAMODSAROAR 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/403589)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Gawtum 

Sing BEEHARRY of La Grotte Lane, Plaine 
Magnien has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General, for leave to change the name of their 
minor daughter Hitaishi into those of Manasvi 
so that in the future, she shall bear the name and 
surname of Manasvi BEEHARRY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 20th July 2018.
Mr & Mrs Gawtum Sing BEEHARRY

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 17/403588)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Kamal Nihal 

RAMDIN has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his names Kamal 
Nihal into those of Micheal Kamal Nihal so that 
in the future he shall bear the names and surname 
of Micheal Kamal Nihal RAMDIN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 23 August 2018

Mr Kamal Nihal RAMDIN
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403612)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Malika 
RAMDIN has applied to the Honourable Attorney­
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General for leave to change her name Malika 
nto those of Lea Malika so that in the future she 
shall bear the names and surname of Lea Malika 
RAMDIN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 23 August 2018

Mrs Malika RAMDIN
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/403613)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Hajra Maleck 
Fazil Karim AHMED has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
her names and surname Hajra Maleck Fazil 
Karim AHMED into those of Hajra MALECK 
FAZIL KARIM so that in the future she shall 
bear the names and surname of Hajra MALECK 
FAZIL KARIM.

Objections, if, any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within 28 days as from the last publication of this 
notice.

(Rec. No. 17/403712)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that John Jeffrey 
Judson JULIE has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his surname 
JULIE into those of JULIE-RUSZ so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
John Jeffrey Judson JULIE-RUSZ.

Objections, if, any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within 28 days as from the last publication of this 
notice.

(Rec. No. 17/403722)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mohamad Reza 
SOOREEFAN of Impasse Robertson, Beau Bassin 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney-General, 
for leave to change his surname SOOREEFAN 
into those of SOREEFAN so that in the future, 
he may officially be known under the names and 
surname of Mohamad Reza SOREEFAN.

Objections, if any should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a 
period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated: 4 September 2018
(Rec. No. 17/403659)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Devenvarma BAUNGALLY of Royal Road, 
Palmar have applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General, for leave to change the name of their 
minor son Mayur into those of Harsh Mayur, 
so that in the future, he shall bear the names and 
surname of Harsh Mayur BAUNGALLY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 20th August 2018.

Mr and Mrs Devenvarma BAUNGALLY
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/403685)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Ramsing JUGURNAUTH of Block Al, 
Residence Sir Gaetan Duval, Rue Cana, Pailles 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney-General, 
for leave to change the name of their minor son 
Keshwar into those of Keshav Jedan, so that in 
the future, he shall bear the names and surname of 
Keshav Jedan JUGURNAUTH.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 3rd September 2018.

Mr and Mrs Ramsing JUGURNAUTH 
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/403732)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Muhammad 
Twaseen Amjat CARIM BACOR of 6, 
Riverside Lane, Coromandel, 71616, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General, for leave 
to change his name and surname Muhammad 
Twaseen Amjat CARIM BACOR into those of 
Twaseen Amjat BACOR, so that in the future, 
he shall bear the names and surname of Twaseen 
Amjat BACOR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 4111 September 2018.

Mr Muhammad Twaseen Amjat 
CARIM BACOR

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 17/403730)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Safia Bibi 
BOOLAKEE of Coastal Road, Pointe de Flacq, 
Belle Mare, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General, for leave to change her names 
Safia Bibi into that of Sofia, so that in the future, 
she shall bear the name and surname of Sofia 
BOOLAKEE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 21st August 2018.

Mrs Safia Bibi BOOLAKEE 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/403735)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Sudhish BURTONY 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change his name Sudhish into those 
of Sudhish Keshav so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Sudhish Keshav 
BURTONY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a 
period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated 12th April 2018.

Sudhish BURTONY
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/476861)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mukhtar Gunny 
JOONUS of La Hausse de la Louviere Street, 
Floreal, has applied to His Excellency, the 
Attorney-General, for leave to change his surname 
“JOONUS” into that of “JOONAS” so that in 
future he may be officially known under the names 
and surname of “Mukhtar Gunny JOONAS”.

Objections, if any, should be filed at the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General, within a 
period of twenty eight days as from the last date of 
publication of the present notice.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 18th day of September, 
2018.

Z.I. Salajee, SA 
of, Suite 319, Saint James Court, 

Saint Denis Street, 
Port Louis.

Petitioner’s Attorney 
(Rec. No. 17/403770)
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First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Tilagavadee 
RAMSAMY of Renganaden Seeneevassen Street, 
Boulet Rouge, Central Flacq has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General, for leave to change 
her name Tilagavadee into those of Tilagavadee 
Chettiar, so that in the future, she shall bear the 
names and surname of Tilagavadee Chettiar 
RAMSAMY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the of the 
office of the Attorney-General within a period of 
28 days as from date of publication of the said 
notice in the papers.

Dated 4th September 2018.

Ms Tilagavadee RAMSAMY 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403764)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 14th 
day of March, 2019 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court situate 
at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale by 
Levy of: «JTout ce qui reste soit trois cent quatre 
vingt un metres carres et vingt sept/centiemes de 
metre carre (381.27m2) (apres distractions 1. d’un 
terrain de cent quarante deux metres carres et huit 
dixiemes de metre carre (142.80m2), vendu suivant 
titre transcrit au Vol. 2363/54 et 2. d’un terrain de 
cent cinquante neuf metres carres et sept dixiemes 
de metre carre (159.70m2) vendu suivant titre 
transcrit au Vol. 2363/55) d’une portion de terrain 
situee au quartier de la Riviere Noire d’apres titre 
(aujourd’hui Port Louis) lieu dit Pointe aux Sables 
de la contenance originaire de six cent quatre vingt 
trois metres carres et soixante dix sept centiemes 
(683.77m2), etant le lot No. H6, Morcellement Hois, 
Pointe aux Sables, d’apres le Cadastre Municipal 
de Port Louis et bornee dans son ensemble d’apres 
le titre de propriete ci-apres relate suivant un 
proces verbal de rapport, avecplanfiguratif y joint, 
dresse par Monsieur Louis Maurice Dumazel, 
arpenteur jure, le 08/12/1986, enregistre au Reg. 
LS 23 No. 7488, comme suit:- Du premier cote, 
par un chemin de trois metres (3m) de large, des 
reserves d’un metre (Im) de large entre, sur vingt 

quatre metres et dix centimetres (24.10m); Du 
second cote, par le lot No. H5, sur vingt six metres 
et trente centimetres (26.30m); Du troisieme 
cote, par une portion de ‘Crown Land’ sur vingt 
quatre metres et cinquante centimetres (24.50m). 
Du quatrieme cote par le lot No. H7, sur trente et 
un metres et dix centimetres (31.10m); Ensemble 
les maison(s), batiment(s) et construction(s) de 
toute nature y existant et generalement tout ce qui 
peut en dependre et en faire partie sans aucune 
exception ni reserve.» La diteportion de terrain de 
la contenance de trois cent quatre vingt un metres 
carres et vingt sept/centiemes de metre carre 
(381.27m2) environ d’apres le titre de propriete, 
a ete trouvee apres mesurage de la contenance 
reelle de trois cent soixante quinze metres 
carres et soixante dix centiemes de metre carres 
(375.70 m2), portant le « Parcel Identification 
Number (PIN) 1924010089, ainsi que I’atteste un 
certificat emis par le Ministere du Logement et des 
Terres en date du 06/06/2017 portant la reference 
PCR 9163/2017. Le tout plus amplement decrit au 
titre en date du 02/09/1994 et transcrit au Volume 
2868/48. The land is a front land, tarred accesses, 
flat topography, rectangular shape, bounded by 
concrete block walls return frontage along Ave. 
Flacq. This comprises a 2 level house made up 
of reinforced concrete frame structures, concrete 
block walls, partly rendered and painted, under 
reinforced concrete slab roof. The house is fitted 
with mixed metal glazed external openings. Floors 
have partly ceramic tiles finishes. The building is 
in generally fair condition and has been built in 
stages. Addition of steel tube structures under 
profilage sheet roof has been made to the front of 
the F/F. Partly tenant occupied. Estimated total 
G.C. A of all building= 290.0m2. Water, electricity, 
telephone are connected to the land.

Together with all that may depend or form part 
thereof without any exception or reservation and 
the whole morefully described in the Memorandum 
of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
SWAN LIFE LTD formerly known as the Anglo 
Mauritius Assurance Society Ltd against Mr. 
Santosh IMRIT & Anor.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 



3650 The Mauritius Government Gazette

that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 18th day of September, 
2018.

Thierry Koenig SA 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 
of 19th Church Street, 

Port Louis 
Attorney in charge of the sale. 

(Rec. No. 17/403779)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 24th 
day of January 2019 at 1:30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar of the Supreme Court of 
Mauritius situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
the SALE BY LEVY prosecuted at the request of 
SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (formerly known 
as (STATE BANK OF MAURITIUS LTD), 
represented by its General Manager, of State Bank 
Tower, 1 Queen Elizabeth II Avenue, Port Louis, 
AGAINST (i) Mr. Dharamduth CHATOORY,
(ii) Mrs. Dharamduth CHATOORY bom 
Shasheela LOCHEE, (iii) Mr. Mohessduth 
CHATOORY, (iv) Mrs. Jassodah CHATOORY, 
the lawful wife of Bharat DUSNA, all of them 
residing at Royal Road, Bois Pignolet, Terre 
Rouge, and (v) Mrs. Kesree CHATOORY, the 
lawful wife of Rajend BHEKUN also known as 
Rajen BHEKUM, residing at Swastika Street, 
Bois Pignolet, Terre Rouge, of the immovable 
properties:

PROPERTY NO. 1 belonging to Mr. and Mrs. 
Dharamduth CHATOORY

Une portion de terrain situee au quartier 
des Pamplemousses lieu dit Bois Pignolet, de 
la contenance de mille quatre cent soixante dix 
metres carres (1,470m2) et bornee d’apres un 
rapport avec plan figuratif y joint dresse par 
Monsieur Robert FOIRET, arpenteur jure, le dix 
huit decembre mil neuf cent quatre vingt dix huit 
(18/12/1998), enregistre au Reg. LS 36 No. 3964, 
comme suit:

Du premier cote, par la Route Publique de 
Bois Pignolet, une reserve de deux metres (2m) de 

large entre, prise et faisantpartie de la parcelle de 
terre ici decrite, sur vingt sept metres trente huit 
centimetres (27m38cms).

Du second cote, par les Heritiers de Salick 
CHATOORY et autres, sur cinquante deux metres 
cinquante centimetres (52m50cms).

Du troisieme cote, par le surplus du terrain, sur 
trente six metres quarante centimetres (36m40cms).

Du quatrieme et dernier cote, en partie par le 
surplus du terrain et en partie par H. CHATOORY, 
sur une ligne brisee en trois parties mesurant 
respectivement quatorze metres (14m), treize 
metres (13m) et trente huit metres soixante dix 
centimetres (38m70cms).

La mesure employee est le metre.

Ensemble tout ce qui peut en dependre ou en 
faire partie sans aucune exception ni reserve.

The whole morefully described in an authentic 
deed drawn up by and executed before Me. 
George Edmund SINATAMBOU, Notary dated 
03/02/1999, duly registered and transcribed on 
10/02/1999 in Vol. TV 4019/41.

There exists on the above described Property 
No. 1 a one storey concrete building under slab 
and a bakery provided with water and electricity 
supplies.

PROPERTY NO. 2 belonging to late Mr. 
Heeralall CHATOORY

A portion land, being Lot No. 3 of an extent 
of two thousand three hundred and nine square 
metres and thirty two hundredths square 
metres (2,309.32m2), situated in the district of 
Pamplemousses, place called Montagne Longue, 
Bois Pignolet, and bounded as per report of 
Mr. L. M. DUMAZEL, Land Surveyor, dated 
30/07/1998, duly registered in Reg. B 147 
No. 2334, as follows:

On the first side, by a common road three metres 
and sixty six centimetres (3m66cms), a reserve of 
one metre and fifty centimetres (lm50cms) wide, 
in and between, on twenty seven metres thirty six 
centimetres (27m36cms),

On the second side, by Lot No. 4 on eighty five 
metres and six centimetres (85m06cms).

On the third side, by Lot No. 2, on twenty seven 
metres and thirty six centimetres (27m36cms).
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And on the fourth and last side, by various 
owners, on eighty eight metres and eighty eight 
centimetres (88m88cms).

Ensemble tout ce qui peut en dependre ou en 
faire partie sans aucune exception ni reserve.

The whole morefully described in a deed 
of Division in Kind bearing reference number 
DK No. 135/1997 duly confirmed by the Master 
& Registrar on 21/09/1998 and transcribed in 
Vol. TV 3926/79 which was rectified as per a 
deed registered and transcribed on 03/02/2009 in 
Vol. TV 4011/60.

The above described Property No. 2 is 
wasteland.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription 
of legal mortgage upon the said properties are 
warned that they must exercise their right before 
the transcription of the judgment of adjudication, 
failing which they shall forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 17/09/2018.

Sivakumaren MARDEMOOTOO 
of 3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, 

Vieux Conseil Street 
(opp. Port Louis Theatre), 

Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale. 

(Rec. No. 17/403758)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
18th of October, 2018 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar situate at the Supreme 
Court Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
the Sale by Levy of «Uneportion de terrain situee 
au quartier de la Savanne, lieudit Caledonia, de 
la contenance de deux cent onze metres carres 
(211m* 1 2 3 4 5 6), etant le lot No. 1 du plan General de 
Morcellement et bornee d’apres un proces verbal 
de rapport, avec plan figuratif y joint dresse par 
Monsieur J. Ramanjooloo, arpenteur jure, le 
vingt cinq mai mil neuf cent quatre vingt treize, 
enregistre au Reg : L.S 28 No. 16891, comme 
suitD ’un cdte, par un chemin commun sous le 
nom de chemin Alka, sur dix metres quatre vingt 
quinze centimetres (10m95cm). Du second cote, 

IN THE INTERMEDIATE COURT 
OF PORT LOUIS

Senior Attorney : Me. S. Mardemootoo

Cause No. 1469 / 16

On Friday the 26th day of October 2018 
at 10 hrs, at La Croisee Diolle, Vacoas, I the 
undersigned Court Usher will sell by public auction 
to the highest bidder and for cash the following 
moveables:-

1 One set sofa.
2 One dining table with 6 chairs
3 One television 24 inches make Trust
4 One fridge make Toshiba
5 Table du milieu
6 One washing machine make Trust

par un chemin de sortie de deux metres cinquante 
neuf centimetres (2m59cm) de large, sur dix neuf 
metres soixante six centimetres (19m66cm). La 
premiere et la deuxieme limites sont reliees par 
une courbe d’un rayon de trois metres decimal zero 
cinq centimetres (3m05cm). Du troisieme cote, par 
le lot No. 2. Et du quatrieme cote, par Monsieur 
B. R. Bisnauth, sur dix neuf metres soixante six 
centimetres (19m66cm). Together with all that may 
depend or form part thereof without any exception 
or reservation, the whole morefully described in 
Vol: TV 2723 No. 26 PIN No. 1602060136, and in 
the Cahier des Charges filed in the matter.

The said sale is prosecuted at the request 
of Mauritius Housing Company Ltd against 
Mr Hemant Kumar KUNTEERAM & Ors. 
All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 12th day of September, 
2018.

Me D. LUCHMUN 
2nd Floor, Fairfax House, 

Mgr Gonin Street, 
Port Louis 

Attorney in charge of the sale.
(Rec. No. 17/403785)
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Seized and taken into execution upon Mr Edun 
Bhai Feroz of Islam Lane, Hollyrood No. 1, 
Vacoas, at the request of Total Mauritius Ltd in 
virtue and in execution of a warrant to levy issued 
by the intermediate court pursuant to a judgment 
of the said court.

The above mentioned moveable effects may be 
seen at the place of sale.

Dated this 19th day of September 2018.

V. Ghurbumin
Court Usher, 

Intermediate Court of Mauritius 
Usher in charge of the sale.

(Rec. No. 17/403774)

NOTICE OF SALE

Attorney S. S. Murday Cause No. 203/17

On Saturday 29th of September 2018 at 10.30 
a.m. at Curepipe District Court yard, I, Aboo 
Saoud Saumtally, Registered Usher, will sell by 
public auction to the highest bidder and for cash 
the following:

(1) One wooden table, (2) Six wooden chairs,
(3) One set of Velvet sofa (3 single + 1 triple seat),
(4) One TV set make “Hisense” -50” and (5) One 
fridge of make LG.

The above mentioned articles were seized upon 
Madookur Roopun at the request of Champa 
Kumari Hurhangee pursuant to a warrant to levy 
issued out of the District Court of Curepipe on 
2nd day of April 2018.

Dated on 18th September 2018.

Aboo Saoud Saumtally 
Registered Usher 

in charge of the sale
(Rec. No. 17/403761)

Memorandum of Charges containing the clauses 
and conditions by virtue of which shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, the Sale by Licitation 
prosecuted at the request of (1) Pravin RAMSURN 
(2) Giandeo RAMSURN (3) Heirs Mantee 
RAMSURN, viz:- (i) Rohit KISSOONDHERY 
(ii) Priya KISSOONDHERY, lawful wife of Anil 
BULDAN and (iii) Anoop KISSOONDHERY 
against (1) Ramessur RAMSURN (2) Kamla Devi 
RAMSURN, the lawful wife of Ramakrishna 
SUNASSEE and (3) Moinee RAMSURN, the 
lawful wife ofPradeep Kumar KHOODEERAM 
of a portion of land of the extent of nine perches 
nine tenth (9.9 perches) or (417.87m2) situate in 
the District of Grand Port, place called L’Escalier 
morefully described in title deed transcribed in 
Vol. 911 No. 121 and bounded as follows: D’un 
cote par I’axe d’un chemin commun partant du 
balls age de Appanah Mulliah, a une borne R. B. 
sur trente neuf pieds; du second cote, par Appanah 
Mulliah sur quatre vingt sept pieds six pouces; 
du troisieme cote par M. S. Osman sur quarante 
quatre pieds et du dernier cote par Ramchundur 
Bhujan sur quatre vingt quinze pieds; together 
with one concrete building under slab provided 
with electricity and water supply and generally all 
that may depend or form part thereof without any 
exception or reservations and the whole morefully 
described in the Memorandum of Charges filed. 
All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
Legal Mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 17th day of September 
2018.

Salim DAWREEAWOO 
of Sir William Newton Street, 

Port Louis.
Petitioners ’ Attorney 

(Rec. No. 17/403789)

SALE BY LICITATION

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 18th 
day of October, 2018, at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar, situate at the Supreme 

SALE BY LICITATION

Notice is hereby given that on the 17th day of 
September, 2018 has been filed in the office of 
the Master & Registrar, situate Supreme Court 
Buildings, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the
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Court Building, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
the Sale by Licitation of the hereunder described 
immoveable property, viz:- A portion of land of the 
extent of 13 Perches 50/100 or 569.82m2 situate 
in the District of Pamplemousses place called 
Pamplemousses (Powder Mill Road) transcribed in 
Vol. 1585/66 and TV 201804/001787, together with 
a concrete building under concrete slab composed 
of 4 rooms, kitchen, bathroom and WC existing 
thereon together with all that depends and form 
part thereof without any exception or reservation 
and an unfinished building composed of one room, 
kitchen and bathroom on ground floor and three 
rooms on first floor. The premises are provided 
with electricity and water supply installations. The 
said portion of land of 13p 50/100 or 569.82m2 
is bounded as per the Memorandum of Survey of
S.L.S L. M. Dumazel dated 23/12/1982 Registered 
in Reg. LS 22/8966 as follows, viz:- On the 1st 
side by the Public Road of Powder Mill, a stretch 
of land of 5 feet which wholly forms part of the 
land of 13p50/100 and which is reserved for the 
widening of the public road on 20.42m. On the 2nd 
side by Boodeea Padaruth or assigns, an exit road 
of 6 feet in between which forms part of the land of 
13p50/100 on 25.91 m. On the 3rd side by the surplus 
of the land of Bareelall PURAIEG on 17.68m. And 
on the 4th and last side by Radhakrishna Mungutroy 
and partly by Marie Ginette Pascal on a broken 
line in two parts measuring respectively 1,52m and 
34.95m. The said sale is prosecuted at the request 
of Boodheswar BALGOBIN against 1.- Sanjay 
BALGOBIN, 2.- Yajeshwar BALGOBIN, 3.- 
Ashish BALGOBIN and 4 - Indira RAMDANY, 
the widow of late Atmanand Balgobin.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 17th day of September 
2018.

Mrs S. B. Jaddoo 
of No. 24, Lislet Geoffrey Street, 

Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale. 

(Rec. No. 17/403790)

SALE BY LICITATION

Take notice that on 25/05/2018, has been 
filed at the Master’s Office of the Supreme Court 
of Mauritius, situate at Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis, the memorandum of charges, clauses, 
conditions, pursuant and according to which 
shall take place before the Master’s Bar the 
Sale by Licitation, prosecuted at the request of 
Poorunsingh Rampudaruth against Jayewontee 
Rampudaruth, of a portion of land of the extent 
of 7 perches or 295.46 m2 situate in the district of 
Riviere du Rempart place called Belle Vue Maurel, 
and bounded on the 1st side by the axis of a common 
and party road of 12 feet large on 67 !4 feet or 
21.92 mts, and on the other side by Ramsookur 
Padaruth on 56 feet or 18.18 mts, together with all 
that may depend or form part thereof without any 
exception or reservations, and the whole morefully 
described in the memorandum of charges filed in 
the above matter.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Dated at Port Louis, this 26/05/2018.

M. Iqbal Dauhoo 
of, Cathedral Square, Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 17/403757)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

GERE Asia Holdings
(In Liquidation)

I, Mr. Ashraf Ramtoola hereby notify that 
I have been duly appointed as Liquidator of the 
abovenamed company vide a written resolution 
dated 24th of August 2018 and that my office is 
situated at Edith Cavell Street, Port-Louis.

If you require any information, please contact 
me on (230) 405-0210.

Dated this 12th day of September 2018.

Mr. Ashraf Ramtoola
Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 17/403731)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 187 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

FIRST SOURCE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT CO. LTD

(In Receivership)

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr. Raj. D. 
Gangoosirdar, having my Registered Office at c/o 
Recovery & Insolvency Practice Ltd, 20, Meldrum 
Street, Curepipe, have been appointed Receiver/ 
Manager of First Source Property Management 
Co. Ltd on September 10, 2018 at lOhrOO.

Description of the property in receivership:

All the assets of the company including 
goodwill, movable and immovable property as 
well as on all or part of its properties which may 
from time to time belong to it and generally on all 
its properties of any kind and nature whatsoever 
and wheresoever both present and future (including 
land and buildings) which are subject to the 
following charges inscribed on the assets of the 
company:

(a) Fixed and floating charge registered and 
inscribed in Vol CH 5379 No. 76 on 
20.10.2010

All persons, companies, corporate bodies 
having in their possession any property of the said 
company are required to return forthwith all such 
properties to the Receiver/Manager. All debtors of 
the company are hereby informed that they should 
pay all sums due by them to the Receiver/Manager 
only and all payments shall only be valid if they 
have been signed by the Receiver/Manager or by 
his duly appointed representative(s).

All creditors and those who have any claim 
from the company are required to send in their 
full name(s), addresses and descriptions, full 
particulars and proof of their debts or claims to the 
Receiver/Manager.

The Receiver/Manager reserves the right, if so 
required, by written notice, requests the creditors 
to be personally present, to come and prove their 
debts or claims.

Notice is also given to any person who reckons 
that the company holds property belonging to 
him and/or property in which he has rights should 
submit his claim in ownership and/or right on or 
before , September 24, 2018 at 16.00 hrs latest.

Mr. Raj. D. Gangoosirdar 
Licensed Insolvency Practitioner 

Receiver/Manager 
First Source Property Management Co. Ltd 

(In Receivership) 
C/o Recovery & Insolvency Practice Ltd 

20, Meldrum Street 
Curepipe 

Tel: 697-3156/Fax: 697-3154 
E-mail: raj.ripl@insolvency.mu

(Rec. No. 17/403772)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of:

The Insolvency Act

And

And in the matter of:

Oceantex Ltd
having its Principal Place of Address at 

Bissessur Lane, Petite Riviere.

And

Rennel Ltd electing its legal 
domicile in the office of

Mr. Gerard Huet de Froberville 
of 19, Church Street, Port-Louis 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Petitioner”)

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Compulsory Winding Up (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Petition”) of the above named Company was 
on Wednesday the 12th September 2018, lodged 
by Rennel Ltd by electronic filing under the Court 
(Electronic Filing of Documents ) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/01045/2018 and the returnable 
date is the 27th September 2018. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 
Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis. A copy of the Petition will be furnished 
to any creditor or contributory of the said Company 

mailto:raj.ripl@insolvency.mu
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requiring the same by the undersigned on payment 
of the required charge for the same, or may be 
obtained on the electronic filing system.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 13th day of September, 
2018.

Gerard H. de Froberville 
19, Church Street, Port-Louis 

Attorney for 
Rennel Ltd

(Rec. No. 17/403779) 

requiring the same by the undersigned on payment 
of the required charge for the same, or may be 
obtained on the electronic filing system.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 13th day of September, 
2018.

Gerard H. de Froberville
19, Church Street, Port-Louis

Attorney for
Rennel Ltd 

(Rec. No. 17/403779)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of:

The Insolvency Act

And

And in the matter of:

Beachwear Exports Co. Ltd having its 
Principal Place of Address at 

242, Royal Road, Coromandel.

And

Rennel Ltd electing its legal 
domicile in the office of 

Mr. Gerard Huet de Froberville 
of 19, Church Street, Port-Louis 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Petitioner”)

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Compulsory Winding Up ( hereinafter referred to 
as “the Petition” ) of the above named Company 
was on Wednesday the 12th September 2018, lodged 
by Rennel Ltd by electronic filing under the Court 
(Electronic Filing of Documents) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/01044/2018 and the returnable 
date is the 27th September 2018. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 
Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis. A copy of the Petition will be furnished 
to any creditor or contributory of the said Company

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of-

The Insolvency Act

Petitioner

And in the matter of-

Blue Sea Star Ltd

Petitioner 

Versus

Restaurant La Citronelle Ltd
(having its Registered Office situate at 

Royal Road, Chamarel, hereinafter referred to as 
“the Company”)

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Compulsory Winding Up of the abovenamed 
Company was lodged on the 18th September 
2018 before the said Court by the undersigned 
Attorney at Law, by electronic filing under 
petition is registered as Cause No. SC/COM/ 
PET/01063/2018 and made returnable on 
Wednesday the 03rd day of October 2018, for the 
Respondent to give it stand through the Electronic 
Filing System and any creditor or contributor of 
the said Company, desirous to support or oppose 
the making of an order of the petition, by making 
the necessary appearance by electronic filing 
either through a Solicitor or in person at the Public 
Service Bureau locate at the Commercial Division 
of the Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig 
Street, Port Louis, a copy of the petition will be 
furnished to any creditor or contributory of the said 
company requiring the same by the undersigned, 
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on payment of the regulated charge of the same or 
may be obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th day of September 
2018.

Pazany THANDARAYAN 
2nd Floor, Chancery House, 

Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis.
Attorney for the petitioner.

(Rec. No. 17/403790)

First Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, Denim De 
L’He Limited, have applied to the Central Water 
Authority for renewal of 3 ground water licences 
to use ground water from boreholes at He d’Ambre 
(Boreholes Ref. BH 610, BH 768 and BH 908) for 
Industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days from the publication of 
this notice by lodging the objection in writing to 
the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor,
Royal Commercial Center,
St. Ignace Street,
Rose Hill.

Denim De LTle Limited 
(Rec. No. 17/403753) Applicant

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Booluck 
Jayaraj of 21, Palma Rd, Quatre-Bomes have 
applied to the Central Water Authority for renewal 
of a ground water licence to use ground water for 
irrigation purposes from a borehole No. 1010 at 
Bassin Solferino.

Any person wishing to object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days as from the publication 
of notice.

(Rec. No. 17/403614) Booluck Jayaraj

NOTICE UNDER SECTION (9)(2) 
AND (3) OF THE CADASTRAL 

SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Kritanun 
SEEBARUTH, Sworn Land Surveyor, at the 
request of Mr Nemunlall Seegoolam will survey a 
portion of land being surplus of 2573m2 belonging 
to him as per TV 8943/45 situate in the district of 
RIVIERE DU REMPART place called Union 
Belcourt. The said survey will start on 13.10.18 as 
from 10.00 a.m. and will continue on the following 
days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the survey on the aforesaid 
date, day and hour and to produce to me or to any 
other Land Surveyor deputed by me, in case of 
impediment, their relevant title deeds, survey plans 
and whatever like documents concerning their 
properties so as to enable me to establish correctly 
the limits separating the portion of land referred 
above from the adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated this 20.09.18.

KRITANUN SEEBARUTH
Sworn Land Surveyor

(Rec. No. 17/403797)s

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3)(c)(ii) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT

Notice is hereby given that, I Diness Purryag, 
Land Surveyor will on Thursday the 11th day 
of October 2018 at 10.00 a.m. proceed with the 
survey and fixing of survey marks of a plot of land 
of an extent of 405.2m2, situate in the District of 
Moka, place called Quartier Militaire belonging 
to Mr. Mohammud Sidik Teemul as per title 
deed transcribed in TV 201802/000886 (PIN 
1811030173) and that at the request of the owner, 
electing his legal domicile in the office of the 
undersigned Land Surveyor.

Neighbouring owners of the aforesaid plot of 
land are notified to attend the said survey on the 
aforesaid date and time and on any following days 
if need be and in case of continuation neighbouring 
owners present as aforesaid will be advised 
accordingly. Neighbouring owners to produce 
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to me any title deed(s), plan(s) or whatever like 
document(s) to enable me to establish correctly 
the boundary lines of the aforesaid property from 
yours. The aforesaid survey will take place on 
the aforesaid date and time by me or by any Land 
Surveyor deputed by me in case of impediment 
and that whether you be present or not.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated this 18th day of September 2018.
Diness Purryag 
Land Surveyor

14, Shri Shamboonath Road, 
(Rec. No. 17/403790) Castel, Phoenix.

REVOCATION OF BONDED SHOWROOM
(S113)

Notice is hereby given that the under mentioned 
bonded showroom has been revoked by the 
Director General, Mauritius Revenue Authority as 
per Section 67 of the Customs Act.

(Rec. No. 17/403776)

Name Address Warehoused
Goods

Date

ABC
AUTOTECH
Ltd

ABC Car
Gallery, Trunk 
Road, Phoenix

New motor 
vehicles

13/09/18

NOTICE UNDER SECTION OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT
CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the public company 
BELLE MARE HOLDING LIMITED has, by 
a special resolution passed on 6 September 2018, 
changed its name to BMH Ltd as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies on 
12 September 2018.

13 September 2018.

La Gaiete Services Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/403756)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Transafrica 
Industrial Limited has by special resolution 

passed on 10 September 2010 changed its name 
to Murmet Mining as evidenced by a certificate 
of incorporation on change of name issued by the 
Registrar of Companies on the 12 September 2018.

Dated this 17 September 2018.

Maitland (Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/403752)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Camberwell 
Beauty Ltd” has by a special resolution passed on 
02 August 2018 changed its name to “Adelanto 
Holdings Limited” as evidenced by a Certificate 
given under the seal of the Registrar of Companies 
dated 12th September 2018.

Dated this 12th September 2018.
GMG Trust Ltd

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 17/403787)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Mount Ararat Ltd” 
has by a special resolution passed on 04 September 
2018 changed its name to “Adelanto Investments 
Limited” as evidenced by a Certificate given 
under the seal of the Registrar of Companies dated 
12th September 2018.

Dated this 19th September 2018.

GMG Trust Ltd
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/403787)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 OF THE 

REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS

Notice is hereby given that the Private Company 
“Smart Carbon Ethiopia” has by Special 
Resolution, passed on 27lil August 2018, resolved 
to change its name to “Smart Carbon Limited” 
as evidenced by the Certificate given under the 
hand and seal of the Registrar of Companies dated 
12th September 218.
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Dated this 17th day of September 2018.

Vuna Capital Trustees (Mauritius) Ltd
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 17/403784)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

BOIB (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that “BOIB 
(MAURITIUS) LIMITED”, a Domestic Company, 
having its Registered Office at C/o JurisTax 
Services Ltd, Level 3, Ebene House, Hotel 
Avenue, 33 Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Republic of 
Mauritius, has by a Special Resolution of the Sole 
Shareholder passed on 8th August 2018, changed 
its name to “Aderson Limited” as evidenced by a 
certificate given under the seal of the Registrar of 
Companies on 21st August 2018.

Date: 17 September 2018

JurisTax Services Ltd
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/403775)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

RDP (Mauritius) Ltd

Notice is hereby given that “Click Payments 
Ltd” has, by way of a special resolution passed 
on 20 September 2017, changed its name to “RDP 
(Mauritius) Ltd” as evidenced by a certificate 
given under the hand and seal of the Registrar of 
Companies on 22 September 2017.

Dated this 18th day of September 2018.

Director 
(Rec. No. 17/403795)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANY ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that MY STONE 
CONSULTING INTERNATIONAL LTD has 
by a special resolution passed on 30 August 2018, 
changed its name into WORLD BAGGAGE 
NETWORK INTERNATIONAL LTD, as 

evidenced by a Certificate issued by the Registrar 
of Companies on 04 September 2018.

This 19 September 2018.

World Baggage Network International Ltd
The Management

(Rec. No. 17/403773)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “HOLDEM 
SECURITY LTD” has, by way of a special 
resolution passed on 05 September 2018 changed 
its name to “HOLDEM CONSTRUCTION 
LTD” as evidenced by a certificate given under the 
hand and seal of the Registrar of Companies on the 
10 September 2018.

Dated this 17th September 2018.

APPAVOO CORPORATE 
SERVICES LTD

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 17/403771)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “RIVONIA FARM 
PRODUCTS” has by a special resolution passed 
on 23rd August 2018 changed its name into that of 
“Southern Africa Procurement Solutions” as 
evidenced by a certificate issued by the Registrar 
of Companies on 05th September 2018.

Dated this 18th day of September 2018.

Lombard Management Services Limited
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/403792)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company “SPOT 
ON (MAURITIUS) LTD” having by its Special 
Resolution changed its name, is now incorporated 
under the name of “POLARIS CORPORATE 
SERVICES LTD” as evidenced by a certificate 
given under the hand and seal of office of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 10th September 
2018.
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This 13th September 2018.

POLARIS CORPORATE
SERVICES LTD

Director
(Rec. No. 17/403745)

NOTICE OF REDUCTION OF STATED
CAPITAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 62(7) 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Pursuant to Section 62(7) of the Companies Act 
2001, “Jardins De Fragrances Ltd” hereby give 
notice that by a special resolution of the company 
dated the 28th day of August 2018, the stated share 
Capital of the company has been reduced by an 
amount of Rs 49,995,000 to bring its stated capital 
to Rs 5,000.

Date : 19.09.2018

Cassan Nathalie
Director

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company Asia 
Debt Investments Ltd having its registered 
office at 1FS Court, Bank Street, TwentyEight, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for 
its removal from the Register under Section 
309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 18 October 2018.

Dated this 18 October 2018.
(Rec. No. 17/403782) Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/403762)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that CHRONOLANE 
SERVICES Ltd, a Domestic Company, having 
its registered office at 45, Serge Alfred Street, 
Beau Bassin, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 311 of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days of 
the date of this notice, by latest the 19 September 
2018.

Dated this: 18th September 2018

Abdool Mehboob Eydatoula 
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403746)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that N5 ENTERPRISE 
LIMITED, a domestic company and having its 
registered office at 11, Avenue des Jacarandas, 
Quatre Bomes, is on the 20th September 2018 
applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the 
notice.

Mr. M. Nabil Soormally
Director

(Rec. No. 17/403796)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Mantolli 
International Corporation”, a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence Company with registration 
number 45562 Cl/GBL, of 10th Floor, Standard 
Chartered Tower, 19 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the grounds that the Company has ceased to carry 
on business, has discharged in full its liabilities 
to all its known creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with its Constitution 
and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies less than 28 days of the 
date of this notice.

Dated this 18th day of September 2018.

DTOS Ltd
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/403775)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that JDN MARKETING 
LTD, a domestic Company, having its Registered 
Office at Morcellement Merry Town Helvetia, 
St Pierre is to be removed from the register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days after the date of this notice.

Date: 20 September 2018.

Director

(Rec. No. 17/403768)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BOOKING 
TRAVEL AND TOURS LTD, a domestic 
Company, having its Registered Office at 275 
Royal Road, Rose Hill is to be removed from the 
register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days after 
the date of this notice.

Date: 20 September 2018

Director
(Rec. No. 17/403768)

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 311(2) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BERT’S 
DEVELOPMENTS LTD (the “Company”), a 
company having its registered office at C/o Navitas 
Corporate Services Ltd, Navitas House, Robinson 
Road, Floreal, is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for the removal of the Company from 
the Register of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001, if 
any, shall be made to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 19th day of September 2018.

Navitas Corporate Services Ltd 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/403788)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Indo Pacific 
Exports Ltd (the “Company”), a Company, 
having its Registered Office at 19th Floor, Newton 
Tower, Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, 
is to be removed from the register of companies 
in accordance with Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby that the Company has ceased 
to carry on business, has discharged in full its 
liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution, and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 
shall be delivered to the Registrar, which shall be 
not less than 28 days after the date of the notice.

Dated this 31st August 2018.

Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 17/403787)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that AFEX COMPANY, 
a Category 2 Global Business Licence Company 
having its Registered Office at 44, St George 
Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 
days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 18th day of September 2018.

Fideco Global Business Services Ltd
Registered Agent

/Rec No I7/4O77S71

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that CYNERGY 
EQUITY LTD a Domestic Company having its 
registered office at Level 3, Alexander House, 
35 Cybercity Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 309(2) of 
the Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar to 
remove the Company from the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
at latest by 17th October 2018.

Dated this 18th September 2018.

ENGLEWOOD SECRETARIAL 
SERVICES LTD

Company Secretary
(Rec. No. 17/403777)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“CRYSTAL ROCK LTD” having its Registered 
Office at 5 Trait d’Union Floreal Road, Vacoas 
Mauritius is applying under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the register of 
companies on the grounds that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Objections if any should be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies at latest on the 12th 
October 2018.

Dated this 11th September 2018.

Director
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“MAURIBEACH TRAVEL AND TOURS LTD” 
having its Registered Office at 5 Trait d’Union 
Floreal Road, Vacoas Mauritius is applying under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
the Registrar of Companies for its removal from 
the register of companies on the grounds that the 
Company has ceased to carry on business, has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Objections if any should be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies at latest on the 12th October 
2018.

Dated this 11th September 2018.

Director
(Rec. No. 17/403778)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that CROSSBOW 
MANAGEMENT LTD, a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence Company having its Registered 
Office at St. James Court, Suite 308, St. Denis 
Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius, is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
after the date of this notice at latest 15th day of 
October 2018.

Dated this 17th day of September 2018.

First Island Trust Company Ltd 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/403765)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that RT TRANSPORT 
LTD, a domestic company, having its registered 
office at 111, Paul Toureau Street, Port Louis, is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the company has ceased to carry on any 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal of the 
company under Section 313, shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
from the date of this notice (i.e., not later than the 
17th October 2018.

Dated this 19th September 2018.
Mr. SUBRATTY RAFFIC

(Director)
Mr. RAMDIANE M. AL-RIAZ

(Secretary) 
(Rec. No. 17/403754)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “RAGOO SAC 
FACTORY LTD” a domestic company having its 
Registered Office at 42 Toureau Avenue, Stanley, 
Rose Hill, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

The company has ceased operations and has 
discharged all its liabilities.

Any objection or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

02nd July 2018.

Mr RAFFICK RAGOO
Company Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403759)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “RAFICK RAGOO 
HADJ ORGANIZER CO LTD” a domestic 
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company having its Registered Office at 42 Avenue 
D’Argent, Stanley, Rose Hill, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

The company has ceased operations and has 
discharged all its liabilities.

Any objection or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

02nd July 2018.

MrRAFFICK RAGOO
Company Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403759)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “CROSS FIT 
LTD” a domestic company having its Registered 
Office at 6 Cretin Avenue, Boundary Road, Rose 
Hill, Mauritius is to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The company has never operated and has 
discharged all its liabilities. Any objection or 
claims if any should be lodged with the Registrar 
of Companies within 28 days from the date of this 
notice.

Date: 30th July 2018

Mr SHEIK IRFAAN AUMEER
Company Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403759)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “DEOCHAND 
LIMITED” a domestic company having its 
Registered Office C/o Sunray Hotel, Royal Road, 
Coromandel, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

The company has ceased to carry on business 
and has discharged all its liabilities.

Any objection or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Date: 08th August 2018

Miss OODHAYE RAMDHARY
Company Director

(Rec. No. 17/403759)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “KRESH CO LTD” 
a domestic company having its Registered Office 
at 32 Trotter Street, Beau Bassin, Mauritius is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

The company has never operated and has 
discharged all its liabilities. Any objection or 
claims if any should be lodged with the Registrar 
of Companies within 28 days from the date of this 
notice.

Date: 08th August 2018

Miss VIDEEA RAMDHARRY
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/403759)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company 
“ARMIBELL LTD”, a Domestic Company, 
having its Registered office at Suite 501, 5th 
Floor, Hennessy Tower, Pope Hennessy Street, 
Port Louis is applying under Section 309(l)(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 to the Registrar of 
Companies.

The Company has ceased to carry on any 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days from 
the date of this notice.

Dated this 3rd September 2018.

Arvind Hemand Sookhoo
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403751)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

Lycaon Investment Company Ltd
Notice is hereby given that “Lycaon Investment 

Company Ltd” of Level 5, Maeva Tower, Bank 
Street, Cybercity, Ebene, Republic of Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for 
removal from the Register of Companies, under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the ground that:-

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.”

Objections or claims if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 
days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 12 September 2018.
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/403748)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mr Chitranand Jhoree of Royal Road, Terre 
Rouge have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the transfer 
of a licence of Dealer in Liquor and Alcoholic 
products - Wholesale in respect of premises 
situated at Royal Road, Terre-Rouge to C. P. 
Jhoree & Son Company Ltd.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Mr Chitranand Jhoree
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403747)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mr Chitranand Jhoree of Royal Road, 
Terre-Rouge have applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the 

transfer of a licence of Retailer of Liquor and 
Alcoholic products - Restaurant in respect of 
premises situated at Royal Road, Terre-Rouge to
C. P. Jhoree & Son Company Ltd.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Mr Chitranand Jhoree
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403747)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Indian Ocean Freelance Marketing Limited 
of Royal Road, Belle Etang has applied to the 
Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Dealer 
in Liquor and Alcoholic products - Wholesale in 
respect of premises situated at Royal Road, Belle 
Etang.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Indian Ocean Freelance Marketing Limited
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403733)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Komal Mohindy of Shivala Road, 
Mont Gout has applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of 
a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
products - Off in respect of premises situated at 
Shivala Road, Mont Gout.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Komal Mohindy
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403763)
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APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Olive Tree Authentic Greek Cuisine Ltd of 
Avenue Condore, More Safeland, Flic en Flac has 
applied to the Director General of the Mauritius 
Revenue Authority for the issue of a new licence 
of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic products - 
Restaurant in respect of premises situated at Coastal 
Road, Trou aux Biches.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Olive Tree Authentic Green Cuisine Ltd
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403766)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Palambal Uppiah of P 10 Lateca, La 
Tour Koenig, Pointe aux Sables has applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the transfer of a licence of Retailer 
of Liquor and Alcoholic products - Off in respect 
of premises situated at La Tour Koenig, Pointe aux 
Sables to Vimalaye Uppiah.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Palambal Uppiah 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/403769)
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MAURITIAN EAGLE 
LEASING

A An IBL Group company

MAURITIAN EAGLE LEASING COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AT 30|UNE 2018

ASSETS
2018 

Rs'000
2017 

Rs'000
2016 

Rs'000

Balances with banks and cash in hand 115,441 185,434 208,074
Deposit with banks 51,065 ■ 101,842
Held-to-maturity investment 79,952 - -
Net finance lease receivables 634,481 736,973 887,135
Plant and equipment 303,618 293,230 346,212
Intangible assets 65 67 47
Deferred tax asset 324 - -
Other assets 6,050 3,857 37,928

TOTAL ASSETS 1,190,996 1,219,561 1,581,238

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers 873,868 861,329 1,082,358
Other borrowed funds 38,205 55,574 88,167
Retirement Benefit Obligations 1,049 987 -
Other liabilities 73,628 74,614 101,205

TOTAL LIABILITIES 986,750 992,504 1,271,730

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stated capital 690,000 690,000 690,000
Actuarial deficit (179) (342) -
Accumulated losses (487,962) (464,988) (382,879)
Other reserves 2,387 2,387 2,387

TOTAL EQUITY 204,246 227,057 309,508

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,190,996 1,219,561 1,581,238

Raj Tapesar 
Chairman

William Chung Nien Chin 
Director

Xavier Lagesse
Chief Executive Officei
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017 2016
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Loss before tax (23,261) (82,109) (213,333)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 90,840 104,929 94,074
Amortisation of intangible assets 37 30 28
Net impairment loss of financial assets 1,691 17,013 166,700
Retirement benefit obligations 188 645 -
Interest income (58,530) (63,968) (85,632)
Interest expense 46,447 52,321 86,022
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 1,680 32,006 12,630
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (2,008) 112,661 141,676
(Decrease) /increase in other liabilities (5,330) 13,882 (14,040)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net decrease in investment in finance leases 161,137 216,552 151,263
Net increase in deposit with banks (51,065) - 101,842
Net decrease in deposits (27,687) (310,922) (811,147)

Cash generated from/(absorbed in) operations 134,139 93,040 (369,917)
Interest paid on other borrowed funds (1,876) (2,900) (4,452)
Interest received on placement with banks 4,919 3,815 14,819

Net cash generated from/(absorbed in) operations 137,182 93,955 (359,550)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (144,143) (120,592) (64,277)
Purchase of intangible assets (35) (50) (48)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 34,324 36,640 18,260

Net cash used in investing activities (109,854) (84,002) (46,065)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 12,221 - -
Payments on borrowings (29,590) (32,593) (41,153)
Issue of share capital - - 300,000

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (17,369) (32,593) 258,847

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 9,959 (22,6401 (146,768)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 185,434 208,074 354,842

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 195,393 185,434 208,074

Cash and cash equivalents are made up of:

Balances with Banks and cash in hand 115,441 185,434 208,074
Held-to-maturity investment 79,952 - -

195,393 185,434 208,074
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MAURITIAN EAGLE 
LEASING

y An IBL Group company

MAURITIAN EAGLE LEASING COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 
Rs'000

2017 
Rs'000

2016 
Rs'000

Interest income 58,530 63,968 85,632
Interest expense (46,447) (52,321) (86,022)

Net interest income / (expense) 12,083 11,647 (390)

Rental income 89,777 82,620 77,652
Fee and commission income 2,165 2,153 2,679
Other income 1,239 5,471 3,553

93,181 90,244 83,884

Operating income 105,264 101,891 83,494

Net impairment loss of financial assets (1,691) (17,013) (166,700)
Personnel expenses (18,761) (15,201) (13,471)
Loss on disposal of assets (1,680) (32,006) (12,630)
Depreciation and amortisation (90,877) (104,959) (94,102)
Other expenses (15,516) (14,821) (9,924)

Loss before tax (23,261) (82,109) (213,333)

Income Tax Credit 287 - -

Loss for the year (22,974) (82,109) (213,333)

Other comprehensive income / (expense) 
Remeasurement of Retirement Benefit Obligations 126 (342)
Deferred tax on remeasurement of Retirement Benefit 
Obligations 37 ■ -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (22,811) (82,451) (213,333)



MAURITIAN EAGLE 
LEASING
An IBL Group company

MAURITIAN EAGLE LEASING COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 IUNE 2018

Stated 
capital 
Rs'000

At 30 June 2015 390,000

Issue of share capital
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

300,000

At 30 June 2016 690,000

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

-

At 30 June 2017 690,000

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year -

At 30 June 2018 690,000



1

Accumulated Actuarial Other
losses Deficit reserves Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

(169,546) - 2,387 222,841

- - - 300,000
(213,333)

-
- (213,333)

(382,879) - 2,387 309,508

(82,109) - - (82,109)
- (342) - (342)

(464,988) (342) 2,387 227,057

(22,974) - - (22,974)
- 163 - 163

(487,962) (179) 2,387 204,246

22 Septem
ber 2018 

3669
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MAURITIAN EAGLE 
LEASING
An IBL Group company

The above statements have been extracted from the full audited statutory financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 
approved by the Board of Directors on 31/08/18.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MAURITIAN EAGLE LEASING COMPANY LIMITED

This report is made solely to the members of Mauritian Eagle Leasing Company Limited (the "Company"), as a body, in accordance with 
Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do 
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for 
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mauritian Eagle Leasing Company Limited (the Company), on pages 3 to 41 which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 3 to 41 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at June 30, 
2018 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Mauritius, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment loss on finance lease receivables

Key Audit Matter

The Company is engaged in finance lease activities on which impairment allowances are provided for. Impairment allowances represent 
management's best estimates of the losses incurred within the leases portfolio at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated on 
a collective and individual basis. The calculation of both collective and individual impairment allowances is inherently judgemental.

The audit was focused on impairment due to the subjective nature of the calculation.

Related Disclosures

Refer to note 5, note 2.16 accounting policies, note 3.1 (a) Credit risk and note 4 (a) and (b) critical accounting estimates and judgements 
of the accompanying financial statements.

Audit Response

•We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over impairment data and calculations.

•We checked the adequacy and completeness of ageing report (re past dues) for identification of impaired lease receivables.

•We verified and recomputed the allowances for impairment in compliance with IFRS and Bank of Mauritius guideline.

•We checked the reasonableness of the data and assumptions, including external surveyor’s report, discount applied and assessment of 
recoverability.
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Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, 

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the 

directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 

intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are 

responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 

audit. We also:

•Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

directors.

•Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 

of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Companies Act 2001We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, other than in our capacity as auditors, and dealings in the ordinary course of business.We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those records.
Banking Act 2004In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius.
The explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Company were satisfactory.
Financial Reporting Act 2004The Directors are responsible for preparing the corporate governance report. Our responsibility is to report the extent of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as disclosed in the annual report and on whether the disclosure is consistent with the requirements of the Code.In our opinion, the disclosure in the annual report is consistent with the requirements of the Code.
Other MatterThis report is made solely to the members of Mauritian Eagle Leasing Company Limited (the "Company”), as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

EDO & Co
Chartered Accountants

Port Louis, Mauritius. Ameenah Ramdin FCCA, ACA 
Licensed by FRC

(Rec. No. 17/403767)
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To the Council of

The District Council of Black River

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of The District Council of Black River, 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, and the statement of income and 
expenditure and the cash flow statement for the six-month period 1 January to 30 June 2016, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified audit opinion.

IA>* ‘ Air Cunfrw Irthn Konruwlv Pr»r1 I rvitic — Mmirttiiic
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Capital and Other Long Term Outlay - Rs 474,432,556

No physical survey had been carried out as at 30 June 2016 to confirm the existence and 
conditions of assets owned by the District Council of Black River. Hence, the accuracy of the 
above figure could not be ascertained.

Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The District Council of Black River as at 30 June 2016, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the six-month period 1 January to 30 June 2016, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the Council’s expenditure and 
income have been applied to the purpose intended by legislature. Such procedures include the 
assessment of the risks of material non-compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements of The District Council of Black River for the six-month period ended 
30 June 2016 were received on 28 October 2016. Following examination of these financial 
statements, amendments were required and the amended financial statements were received on 6 
August 2018.
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In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Black River is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

K.c Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS
28 August 2018
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1

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2016

2015 January-June 2016
Rs Note Rs Rs

469,514,990
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Capital & Other Long Term Outlay (2) 474,432,556z

469,514,990

48,904,450
1,643,097
4,902,717

25,959,148

CURRENT ASSETS
Short Term Investments 
Stock
Debtors
Cash and bank

(4)
(1)
(5)
(6)

35,200,000z
l,734,058z 
6,548,682

43,934,462 z

474,432,556

81,409,412

7,110,179
2,399,630

Less CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Deposits

(7)

87,417,202

12,064,542-
2,399,630

9,509,809
71,899,603 NET CURRENT ASSETS

14,464,172
72,953,030

541,414,593 547385,586

491,489,398
FINANCED BY
General Fund (8) 495,394,441

5,195,588

30,000,000
1,000,000

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Passage Fund

Provision Pension Fund

Other Provisions

(3)

5,310,769

30,000,000
1,000,000

r

13,729,607 OTHER BALANCES (12) 15,680,376

541,414,593 547385,586

Chairperson
M. A. Bhujoho
Ag Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Income & Expenditure Account for the six month period ended 30 June 2016

2015 January-June 
2016

Income
Rs Rs

Government Grant In Aid 196,107,913/ 88,662,677
Investment Income 1,551,694^ 614,212
Rentals 70,450. 45,000

Fees - 8th Schedule 15,885,275 8,340,975

Publicity Fees 2,505,353' 653,703

Scavenging Fees 2,472,620 1,484,330
Permits 6,210,442. 3,765,583

Other Income 1,091,343. 553,451

Independence & other grants 434,000 225,000

226,329,090. 104,344,93 k

Expenditure

Compensation of Employees - 92,159,430 49,785,829

Goods and Services 99,782,159, 50,690,022

Grants and Subsidies 2,372,100. 1,324,000

Employer Social Benefits 5,547,524' 3,007,186

Contribution/Provisions 16,232,151 13,235

Acquisition of non-financial assets 726,948 623,089
216,820,312 105,443,361"

SurpIus/(Deficit) 9,508,778 (1,098,430)
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3

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Cash Flow Statement for the six month period ended 30 June 2016

2015 January-June 
2016

Rs Rs

Operating Activities

Cash received from Grant-in-Aid 196,107,913. 88,662,677
Cash received from Rates & Taxes 4,977,973 2,036,583

Cash received from Fees - 8th Schedule 15,913,775 8,458,425

Cash received from other sources 35,156,736 18,088,720

Cash received from Fees - 10th Schedule 6,210,442 3,765,583

258,366,83^ 121,011,988-

Cash payment to suppliers/contractors, etc. (98,127,193) (46,669,265)

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (136,464,930). (74,373,929)

Net Cash Inflow from operating activities 23,774,716 X (31,206).

Returns on Investment and Servicing of 
Finance

Interest received on investment 1,551,694 614,212x
Interest paid on loan 1 debentures/bank 
charges <■» (12,016)

Net Cash Outflow from R.O.L and S.O.F. 1,551,694. * 602,196-

Investing Activities

Investments (29,904,450) 13,704,450

Payment to increase Capital Outlay (18,062,398) (1,716,857)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (47,966,848) 11,987,593

Financing Activities

Government Grants 14,090,205 5,416,731

TVet Cash Inflow from financing activities 14,090,205 5,416,731
Sub-total (8,550,233) 17,975,314^

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash (8,550,233) 17,975314
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4

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Notes to the Account

l(a Accounting

(i) The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Mauritius.

(ii) In line with accounting practice applicable for Local Authorities no depreciation is charged in the Accounts.
(iii) Stock has been valued at weighted average cost.
(iv) All income have been accounted on a cash basis.
(v) Amount due in respect of trade, scavenging and publicity fees have been disclosed as notes to Accounts.

(b) Basis for Preparation of Accounts

According to Section 4 of the Finance and Audit Act (Amended Act No 1 of 2015), the financial year end is 
amended from 31 December to 30 June.
Further, section 166 A of the Local Government Act 2011 provides for the District Council of Black River to 
prepare Financial Statements for die six months period ending 30 June 2016.

The figures of the Financial Statements for the six months period ending 30 June 2016 are not comparable with 
those for the year ended 31 December 2015.

2 FbcedA^OS

Capital & Other Long Term Outlay

Balance as at 01.01.2016
Rs

Additions
Rs

Disposals 
Rs

Balance as at 30.06.2016
Rs

469,514,990 4,917,566 474,432,556

Schedule fer Capital Outlay, as at 30 June 2016

Opening
Balance as at

01.01.16 Additions Disposal
Closing Balance as at

30.06.16

Land & Building
Capital Projects in villages
Motor Vehicles
Tools & Equipment
Sports Equipment 
Furniture & Equipment
TOTAL

Rs
50,726,957

360,824,651
26,517,462

3,908,376
1,628,717

25,908,827

Rs
1,151,869
1,684,934

954,090

1,126,673

Rs Rs
51,878,826-

362,509,585,
26,517,462
4,862,466-
1,628,717-

27,035,500-
469,514,990 4,917,566' 474,432,556'
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5

3 Pension Fund
In accordance with the Local Government Act 2011, the Pension Fund, which represents contribution of 
employees and of the District Council (Employer) to meet pension liability as from July 2008 has been 
transferred to the SICOM. An amount of Rs 35,411,983 was transferred accordingly in 2013.
The Council operates two types of Plan, a Defined Benefit Plan and a Defined Contribution Plan 
and total contribution to Fund for period January to June 2016 was Rs 5,822,747.
As per statement submitted by SICOM, the Market Value of the fund as at 30 June 2016 was Rs 73,766,606. 
As per last actuarial review carried out by SICOM, the pension obligation of the Council for period prior to 
2008 amounts to Rs 95,879,027. An amount of Rs 30 Mhad been provided in the Accounts to meet these 
pension liabilities. z

4 Short Term Investments

Bank
Maturity 
Date

Fixed Deposit
12 months Details

Rs
ABC Banking
Corporation

03.06.2017 5,200,000
Passage Fund

ABC Banking
Corporation

14.12.2016 15,000,000
Provision Pension

MauBank Ltd 11.10.2016 15,000,000
Provision Pension

TOTAL 35,200,000 ,

5 Debtors
Car Loan to Officers

2015
Rs

4,902,717,

Jan-June2016
Rs

6,548,682x

Other Debtors
Trade fees
Scavenging Fees 
Publicity Fees

3,799,725
1,059,600,
1,330,287.
6,189,612 .

1,558,800
483,900

1,616,837
3,659,537,

Cash at Bank

Petty Cash
Calls and Current Account
Saving Accounts:
MPCB
SBM- Retention Money
Bank One
SBM Current Account (Ex Superannuation) 
SBM- Renewal

896,
17,597,183,

1,064
34,663,907

5,812,584
7,350,.

2,091,922, 
334,490
114,723

25,959,148 X

6,799,570
84,429

2,120,601

264,891
43,934,462-■
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6

7 Creditors

Creditors- Trade
Retention Money
Stale Cheques
Deposits- Deduction Account

4,753,662, 9,868,746
1,963,088 1,889,610

57,874, 89,234
335,555,.___________ 216,952

7,110,179 12,064,542.

8 General Fund
District Council Fund (Note 9(a))
Capital Grant (Note 9(b))

79,188,027 80,615,917
412,301,371_________ 414,778,524"
491,489,398_________ 495,394,441 /

9(a District Council Fund 20/5 Jan-June2016
Rs Rs

Renewal Fund
Revenue Reserve (Note 9)
GRF Revenue Contributions (Note 10)

15,511,2291 15,597,136
11,682,833, 10,584,403
51,993,965 _________ 54,434,378
79,188,027 80,615,917^

(b) Capital Grant
Opening balance 
Grant Applied 
Closing balance

397,083,156^ 412,301,371-'
15,218,215 -___________2,477,153
412301371 " 414,778324 --

10 Revenue Reserve Account

Balance b/f
Surplus/ (Deficit) for i

2,174,055" 11,682,833 -
9,508,778 z_________(1,098,430)

11,682,833 10,584,403-

11 GRF Revenue Contributions

Balance b/f 
Additions

48,938,556 -• 51,993,965-
3,055,409__________ 2,440,413-'

51,993,965 - 54,434378
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12 Other Balances

Account name

Opening 
balance as 
at 01.01.16 Additions Payments

Closing 
balance as at

30.06.16
Rs Rs Rs Rs

Capital Grant 07/08 & LIF 
08/09 228,082 — 228,082

Morcellement Fund 1,881,552./ 472,362. 195,730 ' 2,158,184'
LIF ICBA 2010,Cap 
Projects Rs8M & MCP 
DcinM 72,122/ 72,122'

Other projects 1319,469/ 251,694. 25301 - 1,545,962
Development projects
Rs9.9m,ACP&LIF 2013 2,146,83 Jz 2,146,831'
Local Infrastructure Fund 
2014 1323,488/ 193,545 ' 1,029,943-
2015 - 3,906,467. 2,070,057' 1,836,410
Other Grant-Mins of 
T ourism-Chamarel 119,414/ 119,414
NDURs 15M 191,389z 191,389
Deposit A/C Embellishment 
Beaux Songes Kovil 261,454' 261,454
Grant Jeux des villages 918378 2,112. 916366
Grant World Environment
Day 1,075,014' 632,955- 442,059/
Grant Urban Renovation 
project 3,889319 3,889319.
National Land drainage 
framework committee 298,001 1,000,000/ 560,154- Z 737,847'

NDU Drains Remi Ollier La 
Gaulette 51,129

r'

51,129
MLG-Street Lighting cables 
Cascavelle 54,065' 54,065.
TOTAL

13,729,607 5,630,523 3,679,754' X 15,680376'

(Rec. No. 17/403799)
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To the Council of

The District Council of Black River

Report on the Financial Statements

1 have audited the accompanying financial statements of The District Council of Black River, 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of income and 
expenditure and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements,whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified audit opinion.

Id* 1* Plrwir Air Mmiriturc Centre Inhn Kennerfv Street Port I .mils — Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Capital and Other Long Term Outlay - Rs 469,514,990

No physical survey had been carried out at year end to confirm the existence and conditions of 
assets. Hence, the accuracy of the above figure could not be ascertained.

Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The District Council of Black River as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Mauritius.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the Council’s expenditure and 
income have been applied to the purpose intended by legislature. Such procedures include the 
assessment of the risks of material non-compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements of The District Council of Black River for the year ended 31 December 
2015 were received on 28 April 2016. Following examination of these financial statements, 
amendments were required and the amended financial statements were received on 6 August 
2018.
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In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Black River is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

K.C Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS
28 August 2018
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2015

2014 2015
Rs Note Rs Rs

451,241,36$
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Capital & Other Long Term Outlay

CURRENT ASSETS
Short Term Investments

Stock
Debtors
Cash and bank

Less CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors
Deposits

NET CURRENT ASSETS

FINANCED BY
General Fund

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Passage Fund
Provision Pension Fund
Other Provisions

OTHER BALANCES

(2)

(5)

(1)
(6)
(7)

(8)

(9)

(3)
(4)

(13)

48,904,450
1,643,097
4,902,717

25,959,148.

469,514,990,

451,241,366

19,000,000

1,302,639
5,230,674

34,509,381

469,514,990

71,899,603,

60,042,694

6,079,347
2,397,63Q

81,409,412

7,110,179 x
2,399,630z

8,476,977
51,565,717

9,509,809

491,489,398

5,195,588
30,000,000

1,000,000

13,729,607

502,807,083. 541,414,593,

466,028,983

4,770,889
15,000,000

17,007,211

502,807,083, 541,414,593.

Chairperson
M. A. Bh ujohoiy

Ag Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Income & Expenditure Account for the year ended 31 December 2015

2014 2015
Rs Rs

Income

Government Grant In Aid 184,442,000 196,107,913

Investment Income 1,239,979 1,551,694

Rentals 56,000 70,450

Fees - 8th Schedule 19,700,450 15,885,275

Publicity Fees 2,228,153 2,505,353

Scavenging Fees 2,253,250 2,472,620

Permits 6,904,881 6,210,442
Other Income 981,560 1,091,343

Independence & other grants 225,000 434,000

218,031,273/ 226,329,090/

Expenditure

Compensation of Employees 86,593,473 92,159,430

Goods and Services 97,909,943 99,782,159

Grants and Subsidies 2,144,600 2,372,100

Employer Social Benefits 4,960,401 5,547,524

Contribution/Provisions 15,192,677 16,232,151

Acquisition of non-financial assets 794,518 726,948

207,595,612, 216,820,312'

Surplus 10,435,661 9,508,778
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

2014 2015
Rs Rs

Operating Activities
Cash received from Grant-in-
Aid 184,442,000 196,107,913
Cash received from Rates &
Taxes 4,666,453 4,977,973
Cash received from Fees - 8th 
Schedule 19,700,450 15,913,775
Cash received from other 
sources 32,342,703 35,156,736
Cash received from Fees - 10th 
Schedule 6,775,831 6,210,442

247,927,437 258,366,839/
Cash payment to 
suppliers/contractors, etc. (99,504,227) (98,127,193)
Cash paid to and on behalf of 
employees (123,748,330) (136,464,930)
Net Cash Inflow from 
operating activities 24,674,880 X 23,774,716'

Returns on Investment and 
Servicing of Finance
Interest received on investment 1,239,979 1,551,694

Interest paid on loan / 
debentures/bank charges (1,230) -
Net Cash Outflow from R.O.I. 
andS.O.F. 1,238,749 1,551,694.

Investing Activities
Investments (13,657,122) (29,904,450)
Payment to increase capital 
Outlay (13,370,975) (18,062,398)
Net cash outflow from 
investing activities (27,028,097) (47,966,848)

Financing Activities
Government Grants 22,366,661 14,090,205
Advance from Government (12,600,000) -
Net Cash Inflow from 
financing activities 9,766,661. X 14,090,205

Sub-total 8,652,19} (8,550,233)

Net Increase/Decrease in 
Cash 8,652,193 (8,550,233)
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Notes to the Account

1 Accounting Policies

(i) The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis and in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Mauritius.

(ii) In line with accounting practice applicable for Local Authorities no depreciation is charged in the Accounts
(iii) Stock has been valued at weighted average cost.
(iv) All income have been accounted on a cash basis.
(v) Amount due in respect of trade, scavenging and publicity fees have been disclosed as notes to Accounts.

2 Fixed Assets

Capital & Other Long Term Outlay

Balance as at 01.01.2015
Rs

451,241,366.

Additions
Rs

20,448,624

Disposals
Rs
2,175,000

Balance as at 31.12.2015
Rs-

469,514,990./

Schedule for Capital Outlay as at 31 December 2015

Opening
Balance as at

01.01.15 Additions Disposal

Closing
Balance as at

31.12.15
Rs Rs Rs Rs

Land & Building 49,300,100 1,426,857 - 50,726,957
Capital Projects in villages 347,219,236 13,605,415 - 360,824,651
Motor Vehicles 26,194,462 2,498,000 2,175,000 26,517,462
Tools & Equipment 3,483,351 425,025 - 3,908,376
Sports Equipment 1,628,717 - - 1,628,717
Furniture & Equipment 23,415,500 2,493,327 - 25,908,827
TOTAL 451.241,366 20,448,624 2,175,000 469,514,990

3 Pension Fund
(a) In accordance with the Local Government Act 2011, the Pension Fund, which represents contribution of 

employees and of the District Council (Employer) to meet pension liability as from July 2008 has been 
transferred to the SICOM. An amount of Rs 35,411,983.29 was transferred in 2013.
The Council operates two types of Plan, a Defined Benefit Plan and a Defined Contribution Plan 
and total contribution to fund for 2015 was Rs 10,537,650.
As per statement submitted by SICOM, the Market Value of the fund as at 31.12.15 was Rs 69,163,940.38.

(b) Prior to 2008, no provision was made for pension liability. In line of the actuarial review carried out by 
SICOM, the actual pension obligation of the council for period prior to 2008 amounts to Rs 95,879,027. 

A provision of Rs 15 M had been made in the Accounts as contribution to meet this pension obligation. 
An additional provision of Rs 15 M. has been made in this financial year.

4 Other Provision
A provision of Rs 1 M has been made for payment of bonuses, increments and other dues to employee 
on interdiction in the event that the employee is reinstated.
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5 Short Term Investments
5

Bank Maturity 
Date

Deposit 12 
months

Details

Rs
Mauritius Housing Company l-Jun-16 4,000,000 Passage Fund

ABC Banking Corporation 14-Dec-16 15,000,000 Provision Pension 
Fund

National Commercial Bank 30-Jun-16 15,000,000 Provision Pension 
Fund

State Bank of Mauritius Ltd 18-Mar-16 14,904,450 General Fund and 
Passage Fund

TOTAL 48,904,450

Debtors
Car Loan to Officers

2014
Rs
5,230,674

2015
Rs

4,902,717

Other Debtors
Trade fees 5,266,375 3,799,725
Scavenging Fees 773,900 1,059,600
Publicity Fees 1,015,414 1,330,287

7,055,689 6,189,612^

Cash at Bank

Petty Cash 173 896
Calls and Current Account 29,066,590 17,597,183
Savings Account:
MPCB 158,268 5,812,584
Retention Money 1,313,895 7,350
Bank One 179,957 2,091,922
SBM Current Account (Ex Superannuation) 331,890 334,490
Renewal 3,458,608 114,723

34,509381 25,959,148

8 Creditors

Creditors- Trade Creditors
Retention Money
Stale Cheques
Deposits- Deduction Account

3,891,560
1,818,778

58,194
310,815

6,079347....... ....... .

4,753,662
1,963,088

57,874
335,555

7,110,179

9 General Fund
District Council Fund (Note 10(a))
Capital Grant (Note 10(b))

68,945,827 79,188,027
397,083,156 412,301,371
466,028,983 491,489398
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(a) District Council Fund 2014 2015

Rs Rs
Renewal Fund 17,833,216 15,511,229
Revenue Reserve (Note 11) 2,174,055 11,682,833
GRF Revenue Contributions (Note 12) 48,938,556 51,993,965

68,945,827 79,188,027

(b) Capital Grant
Opening balance 428,503,759 397,083,156
Grant Applied (31,420,603) 15,218,215
Closing balance 397,083,156 412301371

Revenue Reserve Account

Balance b/f (8,261,606) 2,174,055
Surplus for the year 10,435,661 9,508,778

2,174,055 11,682,833
GRF Revenue Contributions

Balance b/f 46,717,068 48,938,556
Additions 2,221,488 3,055,409

48,938,556 51,993,965

13 Other Balances

Account name
Opening 

balance as at
01.01.15

Additions Payments Closing 
balance as at 

31.12.15
Rs Rs Rs Rs

Capital Grant 07/08 & LIF 08/09 228,082 - - 228,082
Morcellement Fund 1,405,552 476,000 1,881,552-
LIF ICBA 2010,Cap Projects Rs8M 1,336,122 1,264,000 72,122
Other projects 1,330,452 - 10,983 1,319,469
LIF 2013 1,793,625 450,000 96,794 2,146,831
Local Infrastructure Fund 2014 1,008,656 9,978,871 9,764,039 1,223,488
Other Grant-Mins of Tourism- 119,414 119,414
NDU Rs I5M 191,389 191,389-
Deposit A/C Embellishment
B.Songes Kovil 261,454 261,454.
Grant Jeux des villages 1,241,907 236,400 559,929 918,378-
Grant World Environment Day 2,329,055 - 1,254,041 1,075,014-
National Land drainage 274,983 421,453 398,435 298,001-
Grant Urban Renovation project 5,700,000 - 1,810,781 3,889,219
Maintenance of Drains (179,071) 179,071 -
National Land drainage framework 
committee (34,409) 34,409 —

NDU Drains Remi Ollier La Gaulette - 2,272,400 2,221,271 51,129,
MLG-Street Lighting cables 
Cascavelle 320,000 265,935 54,065,
TOTAL 17,007,21 Iz 14368,604 17,646,208 13,729,607,

(Rec. No. 17/403799)
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